=

HEOR>

AGENDA

CITY OF ISANTI
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2020 — 7:00 P.M.
CITY HALL
Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Public Comment
Adopt Agenda

Proclamations/Commendations/Certificate Award
1. Mayors Proclamation- MN Manufacturer’s Week
2. IRIS Infants Remembered in Silence

. Approve City Council Minutes

1. September 15, 2020- Regular Meeting of the City Council
2. September 15, 2020- Committee of the Whole Meeting

Announcements
1. City Hall Closed Observance of Columbus Day Monday, October 12, 2020
2. Committee of the Whole Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 5:00 p.m.
3. City Council Meeting Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.
4. Planning Commission Meeting Tuesday, October 20, 2020
(Immediately following the City Council
Meeting)

Council Committee Reports

Public Hearings

. Business Items

City Administrator Josi Wood
1. Discussion on Study of CSAH 5 Intersections with East Dual Blvd and Credit Union Drive
2. Isanti Business Relief Grant Program Update and Small Small Business Coaching Discussion
(Steve Fredlund)
3. Resolution 2020-XXX Approving a Special Event Permit Application for Rum River BMX for MN
State Series Finals (Larry Merchlewitz)

City Engineer Jason Cook
4. Resolution 2020-XXX Declaring Cost to be Assessed, Ordering Preparation of Proposed
Assessment, and Ordering Hearing on Proposed Assessment — 6 Avenue SW Rehabilitation Project

Approve Consent Agenda
1. Accounts Payable in the Amount of $441,464.48 Payroll in the Amount of $211,027.77 and Q3
Council Pay in the Amount of $8,605.82
2. Resolution 2020-XXX Accepting New Contract for Regional Safety Group 2021
3. Resolution 2020-XXX Offering the Position of Part-Time Liquor Store Clerk to Meghan Glassel



4. Resolution 2020-XXX Accepting Parks, Recreation and Culture Board Member Brian Thum’s
Resignation

5. Resolution 2020-XXX Accepting Part-Time Liquor Store Clerk Termination for Elizabeth Kerr

6. Resolution 2020-XXX Approving Snow Plowing Policy and Operational Guidelines

7. Resolution 2020-XXX Execution of Repayment Agreement on Lot 6, Block 3 Villages on the Rum

8. Resolution 2020-XXX Recognizing National Pregnancy and Infant Loss Remembrance Day

9. Resolution 2020-XXX Declaring Metal as Scrap and Authorizing its Disposal

10. Resolution 2020-XXX Authorizing to Enter into an Agreement with Civic Systems for Caselle
Connect Software Modules

11. Resolution 2020-XXX Approving Donation Box at Liquor Store

12. Resolution 2020-XXX Awarding Quote and Authorizing to Enter into a Contract for Codification
Services

13. Resolution 2020-XXX Approving Application for an Exempt Gambling Permit for Rum River BMX
50/50 Raffle

14. Resolution 2020-XXX Authorizing a Reduction in the Letter of Credit for Heritage Estates

M. Other Communications
N. Closed Session
1. Closed Session for consideration of sale of City owned Real Property pursuant to Minnesota Statutes

Section 13D.05 Subd3 (c) for PID 16.040.1030 and 16.040.0960.

2. Discussion Regarding Consideration to Purchase Real Property pursuant to Minn. Stat. 13D.05, subd.
3(c) for PID 16.029.2100 and 16.029.2400.

Adjournment









MINUTES G 1
CITY OF ISANTI oo

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 - 7:00 P.M.
CITY HALL

Mayor Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Members Present: Mayor Jeff Johnson, Councilors: Jimmy Gordon, Paul Bergley, Steve Lundeen and
Dan Collison

Members Absent: None

Staff Present: City Administrator Josi Wood, Human Resources/ City Clerk Katie Brooks, Finance
Director Mike Betker and Chief of Police Travis Muyres

D. Public Comment
None

E. Adopt Agenda
Addendum from Committee of the Whole prior to City Council meeting on 9.15.2020:

ADD K.3 Resolution 2020-177 Approving First Amendment to the Development Agreement for
Legacy Pines 3" Addition Phase 2

Motion by Bergley, second by Collison to approve agenda with the modifications listed above. Motion
passed 5-0. Motion carried.

F. Proclamations/Commendations/Certificate Awards
None

G. Approve City Council Minutes
1. September 1, 2020- Regular Meeting of the City Council

Motion by Bergley, second by Gordon to approve minutes as presented. Motion passed 5-0. Motion
carried.

H. Announcements
1. Park, Recreation, & Culture Board Meeting  Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.
2. City Council Meeting Tuesday, October 6, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.
3. EDA Meeting Tuesday, October 6, 2020
(Following the City Council Meeting)
I. Council Committee Reports
None

J. Public Hearings
None



K. Business Items
Josi Wood City Administrator
1. Resolution 2020-165 Variance request for a garage to exceed 580 square feet and to be larger
than the house at 201 Broadway
[Other conversation to be presented at Public Comment] Scott Zimprich, owner at house, 201
Broadway, suggested a proposed sidewalk from Bluebird Park to the Dog Park on the South side of
Isanti Parkway due to many small children in the area.

Scott Zimprich shared his outlook on his request for a variance to build a 580 square foot detached
garage, which exceeds the size of the primary structure.

The council considered this request at the September 1, 2020 meeting, four (4) members of the
Council were present with one (1) absent. Scott Zimprich was not present at the meeting. The
council had a tied 2-2 vote and postponed the action to the September 15, 2020 meeting. On May
12, 2020 the applicant applied for a building permit to construct a detached garage at 720 square
feet. On May 14, 2020 the Community Development Director emailed him explaining that the
proposed garage exceeds the size limit according to city code. On July 13, 2020 a stop work order
was issued for the property because a building permit was never issued and the garage foundation
had already been poured.

Motion by Collison, second by Lundeen to deny the variance request at 201 Broadway. Motion
passed 3-2 with Gordon and Bergley voting nay.

2. Resolution 2020-166 Approving Metering Software and Hardware and Entering into an
Agreement with Mueller
City Administrator Josi Wood shared that Badger Meters, the current meter company, has informed
staff that the current meters being used are now obsolete and no longer will be manufactured. Staff
has explored options that are in the best interest of residents and such options include new meters
that have different radios and software. Staff recommends switching vendors to Mueller Meters to
receive better service and technology. Wood further shared the recommendation to replace radios
2022 and Finance Director Mike Betker will add it to the Capital Improvement Plan as well as into
the Rate Study. To make the transition and purchase the software needed to read the new meters it
would be an amendment to the budget in water in the amount of $8,000. A new laptop and Caselle
billing software will need to be purchase in order to ensure the billing software is able to speak to the
new meters for a total amount not to exceed $11,000.01.

Motion by Lundeen, second by Gordon to approve resolution as presented. Motion passed 5-0.
Motion carried.

3. Resolution 2020-177 Approving First Amendment to the Development Agreement for Legacy
Pines 3" Addition Phase 2

City Administrator Josi Wood shared that this was discussed at Committee of the Whole earlier in

the night. A request came in from the developer of Everpine Landholdings, LLC. Which holds a

developers agreement for Legacy Pines specifically with the 3™ addition he has requested to have his

letter of credit split into two parts which then would allow him to keep working on his utilities and

not to put up more letter of credit before he has to do the surface work and keeps the project moving

along and is a time sensitive issue which is why it is being brought forward to council now.

Motion by Bergley, second by Collison to approve amending the Letter of Credit for Legacy Pines

3 Addition. Motion passed 5-0. Motion carried.

L. Approve Consent Agenda
1. Accounts Payable in the Amount of $222,652.70 Payroll in the Amount of $104,290.60



N

&,

8.
9.

10.
11.

Resolution 2020-167 Regarding Maintenance of Part-Time Peace Officers

Resolution 2020-168 Approving Amendment to the 2020 Budget

Resolution 2020-169 Authorization to Purchase Items with Wellness Funds from the
Approved Budget

Resolution 2020-170 Accepting Part-Time Liquor Store Clerk Letter of Resignation for Brian
Williams

Resolution 2020-171 Approving the hire of Building Official Christopher Chandler
Resolution 2020-172 Entering into an Agreement with Nextera for Hosted Voice/ Phone
Services for City Hall

Resolution 2020-173 Approving Proposals for Automated Laserfiche Services

Resolution 2020-174 Approving Application for Exempt Gambling Permit for Friends of Saint
Scholastica

Resolution 2020-175 Authorizing Purchase of Emergency Management Radio Equipment
Resolution 2020-176 Authorizing Purchase of 2021 Chevrolet Tahoe and Equipment for
Emergency Management Mobile Command Vehicle

Motion by Bergley, second by Collison to approve Consent Agenda as presented. Motion passed 5-0.
Motion carried.

M. Other Communications

1. August Police Department Reports

2. August Code Enforcement Officer Report

3. August Building Inspector Report

4. September Engineering Project Status Report
Adjournment

Motion to adjourn by Bergley, second by Collison. Motion passed 5-0. Motion carried. The
meeting was adjourned at 7:34 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

%gm&m ] p9s.

Jaden Moore

Deputy City Clerk/ Human Resources



G.2.

MINUTES
CITY OF ISANTI
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 — 5:00 P.M.
CITY HALL

Mayor Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Members Present: Mayor Jeff Johnson, Councilors: Jimmy Gordon, Paul Bergley, Steve
Lundeen and Dan Collison

D. Public Comment

None

E. Committee Meeting Items

1. PW Updates

Street painting of crosswalks, stop bars, school crossings, railroad crossings and
parking lots was completed.

Public Works crew repaired a storm drain on East Dual Blvd in front of UPS. The
repair required a new casting to be installed as well as some curbing.

Annual maintenance of the air release valves have been completed for the third
time this year. This is part of the quarterly maintenance that is done.

Sewer jetting has begun and this year jetting will be done at each lift station and
cleaning the lift station itself. Primarily, Pubic Works jets to prevent sewer
backups in the system but also to inspect the infrastructure itself.

Generator pads have been poured and the generator installs should be starting
soon. The work is scheduled to be completed in October.

Staft worked through some filter issues at the Waste Water Treatment Plant. It
was discovered that the filters were low on potassium Permanganate, allowed to
sit then backwashed before being put back in use.

Staff cleaned out the backwash tank which is part of annual maintenance. It is an
opportunity to discard all the Iron and Manganese that is removed during normal
operation.

Staff verified gate valves were open prior to hydrant flushing, but during that time
staff discovered that 8 gate valves were closed at different locations in town.
Staff completed hydrant flushing and was able to complete a small list of hydrant
repairs.

The sledding hill project has begun and should be completed in late September
weather permitting.

Public Works crews have been fogging for Mosquitos and will continue through
September.

Staff was able to pour concrete curbing at Rum River Meadows Park and that will
be the last park that gets curbing.



The Compost Site is open and continues to be busy. The Sunday hours will begin
on October 25" with the compost site closing for the season on November 8%

The Community Garden is slowing down but the Sunflower Maze is in full
bloom.

The Farmers Market is open until September 25,

2. Pedestrian Bridge (New Information) Discussion

At the January 2020 goal setting meeting discussion was held about a pedestrian
bridge project.

Council unanimously decided that there were other things to consider at that time.
The Federal Highway Administration Division Central Finance Officer has
reached out asking what the city is going to do with the funds that were allccated
to that project.

The total of the bridge is going to cost a little over $4 million dollars and
approximately $2.1 million in federal funds and approximately just under $2
million that could potentially be obtained from other grant opportunities.

The amount is $200,149,745

The preliminary bridge project that was projected in the past was supposed to be
placed where the Best Western Hotel is now.

Recommendation from Committee is for City Engineer Jason Cook to bring

updated cost and information for the project to a future Committee of the Whole
meeting.

3. Mixed Radio Network Participation (Mayor Johnson)

Mayor Johnson was asked to be a guest on a podcast.

The network are advocates for public safety and law enforcement.

City Attorney does not recommend using a city facility.

City Attorney recommended caution on the Mayor speaking on behalf of the city.
Recommendation from Committee is for Mayor Johnson to participate in podcast
with Fire Chief Al Jankovich and Chief of Police Travis Muyres.

4. Legacy Pines 3™ Addition Letter of Credit

A request came in from the developer of Everpine Landholdings, LLC for the
development Legacy Pines 3™ addition, the request is for the following:
> Pay all necessary fees City fees for the 32 lots in Phase II and the required
escrows in connection with Phase II.
> Post the minimum 10% of total construction costs amount that the City
requires for the warranty period.
> That at the end of construction season, whatever amounts are yet needed
to complete the unfinished work be posted with the City at this time.
The addition is broken up into three phases.
Phase one is near completion.
One option to consider is to break the letter of credit into two parts.



e Recommendation from Committee is to move forward with breaking the letter of
credit into two parts and bring to City Council meeting later this night of
September 15, 2020 for consideration.

5. Coaching Funds for Small Businesses (Steve Fredlund)

e Small Small Business Community has requested $12,000 in funding to provide 20
small businesses in Isanti with four (4) hours of individual business coaching plus
lifetime membership at smallsmallbusiness.com

e Membership also includes post-program discounts on private coaching, group
coaching and mastermind groups

e Recommendation from Committee is to postpone until the October 6™ City
Council meeting to determine the amount of funding left from the CARES Act.

6. CARES Act Funding for Fire District
e Chief Jankovich shared that he is greatly appreciated for the CARES Act money that
is allocated for the fire district.
e Jankovich provided a bid for the audio/visual distance learning equipment.
e Recommendation from Committee is for Fire Chief Al Jankovich, City
Administrator Josi Wood and Finance Director Mike Betker to purchase items that
have been allocated and approved to be purchased for the Fire District.

F. Adjournment
Meeting was adjourned at 6:18 p.m.
Respectfully Submitted,

%am“f'?ww

Jaden Moore
Deputy City Clerk/ Human Resources



K.1.

A Commusity For Generations.

]
lsantl Memo for Council Discussion

To: Mayor Johnson and Members of the City Council

From: City Administrator Josi Wood

Date: October 6, 2020

Subject: Discussion on Study of CSAH 5 Intersections with East Dual Blvd and Credit Union
Drive

Background:

The City partnered with Isanti County, Res 2019-217, to conduct a traffic control and evaluation study
for the intersections of Heritage Blvd (County Rd 5) and East Dual Blvd and Credit Union Drive.

The engineering firm chosen by Isanti County was WSB. The full study is attached and represents
options for traffic control. Staff is requesting discussion and for a recommendation as to which traffic
control, signal or roundabouts, is preferred.

Request:
Staff is requesting discussion and direction on this item.

Attachment:

e WSB Engineering Analysis of CSAH $ Intersections with East Dual Blvd and Credit Union
Drive



Memorandum

To: Richard Heilman, PE, Isanti County Engineer
From: Erik Seiberlich, Senior Project Manager
Sean Delmore, PE, PTOE, Director of Traffic Engineering
Date: September 17, 2020
Re: Analysis of CSAH 5 Intersections with East Dual Boulevard and Credit Union Drive

WSB Project No. 014712-000

A. Introduction

The purpose of this report is to evaluate the traffic control and intersection lane geometry needed for two
existing intersections: County State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 5 and East Dual Boulevard, as well as CSAH 5
and Credit Union Drive, located in the City of Isanti in Isanti County, Minnesota. This report will document
the existing conditions, operations and safety. It will also analyze existing and proposed intersection
geometry using projected traffic volumes.

B. Description of Location
CSAH 5 (Heritage Boulevard) is a four-lane undivided (divided from the Kwik Trip access east to TH 65)
minor arterial roadway within the study area. CSAH 5 serves as an east-west route for Isanti County,
intersecting the Sherburne County line on the west and the Chisago County line on the east. The only
major intersecting roadway is Trunk Highway (TH) 65 in the City of Isanti.

East Dual Boulevard and Credit Union Drive are both two-lane local roadways located within the city
limits. The south termini of East Dual Boulevard is located at CSAH 5, as well as the north termini of
Credit Union Drive. The intersection with Credit Union Drive is located approximately 1,000-feet west of
TH 65. The intersection with East Dual Boulevard is located approximately 300-feet west of Credit Union
Drive. Kwik Trip has an access on CSAH 5, skewed slightly east across from Credit Union Drive.

The project location within the context of the surrounding area is represented in Figure 1.






C. Existing Conditions

The two intersections along CSAH 5 are currently minor approach stop-controlled. A summary of the
characteristics of East Dual Boulevard and Credit Union Drive study intersections are as follows:

CSAH 5 and East Dual Boulevard intersection:
= FEastleg
o 2thrulanes
o 1 exclusive right-turn lane
o 30 mph speed limit
o 10,600 ADT (2016 MnDOT)
= Westleg
o 2thru lanes (1 is shared thru/left-turn lane)
o 30 mph speed limit
o Existing crosswalk
o 10,600 ADT (2016 MnDOT)
* North leg

o 1 shared lane

o 30 mph speed limit

o Existing crosswalk

o 1,250 ADT (2016 MnDQOT)

CSAH 5 and Credit Union Drive intersection:

= Eastleg
o 2thrulanes (1 is shared thru/right-turn lane)
o 30 mph speed limit
o 10,600 ADT (2016 MnDOT)

=  Westleg
o 2thru lanes (1 is shared thru/left-turn lane)
o 30 mph speed limit
o 10,600 ADT (2016 MnDOT)

= South leg
o 1 shared lane
o 30 mph speed limit

= Skewed North leg
o Kwik Trip Gas Station access
o 1 shared lane

o This is an entrance only not an exit from the Kwik Trip

The existing intersection geometry is depicted in Figure 2.

Traffic turning movement counts at the intersections of CSAH 5 and East Dual Boulevard, and CSAH 5
and Credit Union Drive were collected on Tuesday September 10, 2019. The results of these traffic
counts are provided in Appendix A. Existing Average Daily Traffic (ADT) volumes are from Minnesota
Department of Transportation (MnDOT) traffic volume map year 2016 and are included in Figure 2.

A summary of the 3-year (July 2016- June 2019) crash history at the CSAH 5 intersections with East Dual
Boulevard and Credit Union Drive are provided in Table 1 and 2. Isanti County provided the crash details
from the police department. These reports indicate there have been 5 crashes at the East Dual Boulevard
intersection and 3 crashes at the Credit Union Drive intersection between July 2016 and June 2019.
Existing crash patterns show that both intersections experience a higher-than-average rate of 0.41
crashes per million entering vehicles (East Dual Boulevard) and 0.25 crashes per million entering vehicles
(Credit Union Drive), compared to the average rate of 0.19 for an urban thru-stop intersection (2015
MnDOT Crash Toolkit). A Crash Diagram can be found in Appendix B.

In recent years, mobility and safety on the CSAH 5 corridor between these intersections has been a
concern. Several crashes have occurred since the Kwik Trip Gas Station was opened in early 2019, as









D. Future Conditions

The CSAH 5 corridor is projected to increase within the coming years and different intersection
alternatives were identified for the intersections with East Dual Boulevard and Credit Union Drive.

The proposed intersection modifications included four different alternatives:

Alternative 1 (See Appendix E1):

Installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of CSAH 5 and East Dual Boulevard.

Mill and overlay of CSAH 5 between west of West Dual Boulevard and east of Credit Union Drive
with restriping to include two-way left turn lane or exclusive left-turn lanes for all accesses.
Reduction of eastbound CSAH 5 to one lane by restriping, and roadway widening on the north side
of CSAH 5 to maintain the two westbound lanes and right-turn lane for East Dual Boulevard.

This alternative could work as an interim improvement prior to Alternative 2.

Alternative 2 (See Appendix E1):

Realignment of Credit Union Drive to create a 4-legged intersection with East Dual Boulevard and
CSAH 5, and the installation of a traffic signal.

Mill and overlay with restriping to include exclusive turn lanes on CSAH 5 at the traffic signal.
Reduction of eastbound CSAH 5 to one lane by restriping, and roadway widening on the south and
north side of CSAH 5 to maintain the two westbound lanes.

Closure of existing Credit Union Drive access to CSAH 5 and realignment of Cherrywood Street to
intersect the new road.

Alternative 3 (See Appendix E1):

Installation of a mini-roundabout at each intersection (2 total).
Restriping west of East Dual Boulevard and east of Credit Union Drive on CSAH 5 for appropriate
lane transitions.

Alternative 4 (See Appendix E1):

Realignment of Credit Union Drive to create a 4-legged intersection with East Dual Boulevard and
CSAH 5, and the installation of a mini- roundabout.

Restriping west of East Dual Boulevard and east of Credit Union Drive on CSAH 5 for appropriate
lane transitions.

Closure of existing Credit Union Drive access to CSAH 5 and realignment of Cherrywood Street to
intersect the new road.

Recently the Stakeholder Agencies have contacted inquired about the possibility to acquire the land south
of the CSAH 5 & East Dual Boulevard intersection. At this time the landowner is not interested in selling
or otherwise providing that land for future transportation right-of-way. Due to this Alternatives 2 and 4 will
no longer be considered as part of this traffic study.

Traffic Control Analysis

The following subsections detail the analysis used for determining the appropriate traffic control for each
intersection or a combined intersection. Thirteen hours of turning movements (6:00 AM-7:00 PM) were
counted on Tuesday, September 10, 2019 and used to perform a traffic signal warrant analysis if the two
intersections were combined and realigned as one four-legged intersection, and for each intersection
separately.



Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis

Part 4 of the MN MUTCD contains information pertaining to highway traffic signals, including a series of
traffic-signal warrants that define the minimum conditions under which installing a traffic signal could be
justified. These traffic signal warrants have been developed as national guidelines to promote continuity
of traffic control devices and to ensure that traffic signals are installed at intersections that benefit from
their operations. The following are the nine MN MUTCD traffic signal warrants:

Warrant 1-Eight-Hour Vehicle Volume
Warrant 2-Four-Hour Vehicle Volume
Warrant 3-Peak Hour Vehicle Volume
Warrant 4-Pedestrian Volume

Warrant 5-School Crossing

Warrant 6-Coordinated Signal System
Warrant 7-Crash Experience

Warrant 8-Roadway Network

Warrant 9-Intersection Near a Grade Crossing

According to the MN MUTCD, inclusion of right-turn volumes for warrant analysis is dependent on
engineering judgment, site factors and turning movement volumes. By applying engineering judgment,
right-tum movements on all approaches of the combined access intersection and separate intersections
were included in the analysis due to the lack of existing right-turn lanes on all legs.

The following is the result of the traffic signal warrant analysis for a combined intersection. See Appendix
C1 for additional information.

Warrant 1 — Eight-Hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 2 — Four-Hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 3 — Peak-hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 4 — Pedestrian Volume: NOT MET

Warrant 5 — School Crossing: N/A

Warrant 6 — Coordinated Signal System: NOT MET
Warrant 7 — Crash Experience: NOT MET

Warrant 8 — Roadway Network: NOT MET

Warrant 9 — intersection Near a Grade Crossing: N/A

Signal Warrants 1, 2 and 3 are met with existing traffic volumes and speed limits, with the realignment of
accesses to create a 4-legged intersection.

The following is the result of the traffic signal warrant analysis for the intersection of CSAH 5 and East
Dual Boulevard. See Appendix C2 for additional information.

Warrant 1 — Eight-Hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 2 ~ Four-Hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 3 —~ Peak-hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 4 — Pedestrian Volume: NOT MET

Warrant 5 - School Crossing: N/A

Warrant 6 — Coordinated Signal System: NOT MET
Warrant 7 — Crash Experience: NOT MET

Warrant 8 — Roadway Network: NOT MET

Warrant 9 — Intersection Near a Grade Crossing: N/A

Signal Warrants 1, 2 and 3 are met with existing traffic volumes and speed limits at the intersection of
CSAH 5 and East Duali Boulevard.



The following is the result of the traffic signal warrant analysis for the intersection of CSAH 5 and Credit
Union Drive. See Appendix C3 for additional information.

Warrant 1 ~ Eight-Hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 2 — Four-Hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 3 —~ Peak-hour Vehicle Volume: MET
Warrant 4 — Pedestrian Volume: NOT MET

Warrant 5 — School Crossing: N/A

Warrant 8 — Coordinated Signa! System: NOT MET
Warrant 7 — Crash Experience: NOT MET

Warrant 8 — Roadway Network: NOT MET

Warrant 9 — intersection Near a Grade Crossing: N/A

Signal Warrants 1, 2 and 3 are met with existing traffic volumes and speed limits at the intersection of
CSAH 5 and Credit Union Drive.

E. All-Way Stop Warrant Analysis

Part 2B of the Minnesota Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MN MUTCD) contains information
pertaining to the all-way stop control with criteria relating to vehicular volumes and crash history that
define the minimum conditions under which installing an all-way stop could be justified.

The following are the discussions regarding whether the intersection geometry and/or traffic volumes
meet the guidance in the MN MUTCD. Text in italics denotes guidance from the MN MUTCD, and regular
text denotes discussion on whether conditions meet the guidance. Using the provided count data, all-way
stop warrants were analyzed, with the realignment of accesses to create a conventional 4-legged
intersection and for each intersection separately.

*» A multi-way stop application can be used as an interim measure while arrangements can be
made to install a traffic signal — A traffic signal is warranted at this intersection; therefore, a muiti-
way stop application could be used as an interim measure.

s Five or more reported crashes in a 12-month period that are susceptible to correction by a multi-
way stop installation — Only two right-angle crashes have occurred within the past 5 years at each
of the intersection with CSAH 5.

e Minimum volumes —~ 7 of the required 8 hours were met, See Appendix D1-D3 for volume
analysis.

* Where no single criterion is satisfied, but where the preceding criteria are all satisfied to 80% of
the minimum values. — 11 hours of the required 8 hours were met, See Appendix D1-D3 for the
80% minimum value analysis.

* The need to control left-turn conflicts -~ Westbound left-turn conflicts would need to be controlled
due to relatively high left-turn volumes compared to right-turn volumes, and oncoming traffic is
high during peak hours.

¢ The need to control vehicle/pedestrian conflicts near locations that generate high pedestrian
volumes — The existing intersections do not experience a high level of pedestrian and bicycle
traffic that would require installation of a multi-way stop to provide adequate operations.

» Locations where a road user, after stopping, cannot see conflicting traffic and is not able to
negotiate the intersection unless conflicting cross traffic is also required to stop — Sightlines are
currently visible at both intersections.

» An intersection of two residential neighborhood collector (through) streets of similar design and
operating characteristics where multi-way stop control would improve operational characteristics
of the intersection — East Dual Boulevard and Credit Union Drive are not of the same functional
classification or design as CSAH 5, traffic operations at the intersection would not benefit from the
installation of a multi-way stop.



The signal warrant and 80% volume warrant are met if the two intersections were realigned and
combined as one intersection. However, because traffic volumes on CSAH 5 are much higher than the

minor approaches, all-way stop control is not recommended if the accesses were combined or if they
remain as separate intersections.

Although no traffic warrants for roundabouts currently exist, the MnDOT Intersection Control Evaluation
Manual states that if a traffic signal or an all-way stop warrant is met, a roundabout should also be
considered as a warranted traffic control device. There are traffic signal and all-way stop warrants that
are currently met for both intersections, which makes the installation of a roundabout warranted. The
Intersection Control Evaluation Manual also states that site-specific safety issues may cause a
roundabout to be justified. As traffic volumes rise at the intersection, safety will become a larger concemn
as vehicles are turning in and out of the accesses.

Crash Evaluation

Crash reductions for each type of intersection control were estimated based on the proposed layout and
the crash reduction factors from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Crash Reduction Factors
and the Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) Roundabout Crash Reduction Factors. Table
3 shows the projected crash rate and yearly crashes for each traffic control type using the existing traffic
volumes.. Fewer crashes mean a reduced cost to the local economy in terms of lost productivity related to
property damage, injuries, and congestion on local roadways.

Table 3 — Existing and Projected Crash Rates by Traffic Control Type

Thru-Stop @' Ea.st Dual Blvd 0.41 167
(Existing)
Thru-Stop @AEa_st Dual Blvd 0.25 1.00
(Existing)
.Com.blned. Tr.\ru-Stop 0.62 2.67
(Build with existing crashes)
Urban-Thru Stop 0.19 0.80
(State average rate)
High Volume, Low Speed Signal 0.72 3.09
(State average rate)
Urban Single Lane Roundabout 0.60 0.25 1.08
Urban Multi-lane Roundabout 0.65 0.22 0.95

*Crash reduction factors taken from MnDOT's HSIP Program guidance

**Crash rate for proposed improvements =(1 - CRF) x (existing CR)

Traffic Forecasts

Based on the Minnesota DOT County Growth Rate Table, traffic volumes in Isanti County are projected to
rise by 10% over the next 20 years. For future analysis, the 10% increase in traffic movement volumes

will be used in all simulations to determine level of service. Year 2039 Forecasted Turning Movements
are shown in Figure 3.












Table 5§ - 2019 Build Operations Summa

Intersection AM Peak PM Peak

c Location

5] Delay* (LOS) Delay* (LOS)
© Through Through

E 9 (A) 11 (8)

Tg CSAH 5 & East Dual Bivd s8 14 (B)

& EB 10(8) | 15(B) 12(8) | 12(B)

a NB 20 (C) 20 (C) 4(n) 22 (C) 16 (C) 7(A)

o

& WwB 9 (A] 0 (A] 0 (A 6 (A 1 (A 0 (A

% |credit Union Dr & CSAH 5 @ () @) 2 (A) (A) ol A 3(A)
Z SB 0 (A) 0 (A) 0 (A) 0(A) 0 (A) 4(A)

- EB 6 (A) 3(A) 2 (A) 6 (A) 3 (A) 2(A)
* Delay measured in seconds per vehicle

With the existing volumes and the proposed improvements, both intersections are expected to operate
with an overall LOS B or better during the AM and PM peak hours. The traffic signal and surrounding
improvements are being designed to give gaps for traffic on minor approaches to enter CSAH 5. The

exclusive left-turn lanes will also provide storage for turning vehicles so they will not block mainline traffic
as occurs in the existing condition.

2019 Build-Alternative 3 (Dual Mini-Roundabouts) Traffic Operations Analysis

The 2019 Build-Alternative 3 analysis was modeled using VISSIM software with existing traffic volumes.
This scenario assumes proposed lane geometry, access, and traffic control as described for Alternative 3.
The results of the 2019 Build-Alternative 3 condition traffic operations analysis are summarized in Table
6. Further modeling results are provided in Appendix F.

Table 6 — 2019 Build-Alternative 3 Operations Summary (VISSIM
Intersection AM Peak PM Peak

° Approach |Intersection Approach .
= Location Approach Intersection
§ Delay* (LOS)
g wB 3(A) 3 (A)
P
® | CSAH5 & East Dual
H Blvd sB 3 (A) 3 (A) 7 (A) 4(A)
2 EB 3(A) 4 (A)
g NB 4 (A) 4 (A)
S | CSAHS5 & Credit
[5+]
E Union Dr wB 4 (A) 3(A) 6 (A) 5(A)
2 EB 2(8 4(A)
* Delay measured in seconds per vehicle

With the existing volumes and the proposed improvements, both intersections are expected to operate
with an overail LOS A during the AM and PM peak hours. The dual mini-roundabouts and surrounding

improvements are being designed to give gaps for traffic on minor approaches to enter CSAH 5, as well
as slow vehicles down through the corridor.






2039 Build-Alternative 3 (Dual Mini-Roundabouts) Traffic Operations Analysis

The 2039 Build-Alternative 3 analysis was modeled using VISSIM software with projected 2039 traffic
volumes as described in the “Traffic Forecasts” section. This scenario assumes proposed lane geometry,
access, and traffic control for Alternative 3. The results of the 2039 Build-Alternative 3 condition traffic
operations analysis are summarized in Table 9. Further modeling results are provided in Appendix F.

Table 9 — 2039 Build-Alternative 3 Operations Summary (VISSIM

Intersection PM Peak

° Approach [Intersection Approach i
= . Intersection
= Location Approach
S Delay* (LOS)
5 wB 4(A) 5 (A)
= | CSAH 5 & East Dual-
[i-]
'g Bivd SB 4 (A) 5 (A) 8 (A) 5 (A)
& EB 5 (A) 5 (A)
3 NB 4(A) 4 (A)
. CSAH 5 & Credit
(i}
-g Union Dr WB 6 (A) 5 (A) 9 (A) 7 (A)
& EB 3 (A) 6 (A)
Del

>

lay measured in seconds per vehicle

With the 2039 projected volumes and the proposed geometry, the intersections are expected to operate
with an overall LOS A during the AM and PM peak hours. The dual mini-roundabouts and surrounding
improvements are being designed to give gaps for traffic on minor approaches to enter CSAH 5, as well

as slow vehicles down through the corridor. The dual mini-roundabouts are expected to provide efficient
operations beyond the 2039 horizon year.

Evaluation Considerations

Right of Way Impacts

Maintaining the existing geometry and traffic control would require no additional right of way. Right of
way impacts for the build alternatives are shown in Table 10.

Table 10 — Rig
Alternative Number of Parcels Permanent Right of | Temporary Easement

Needing Right of Way | Way (SF) (SF)

1 — Signal Option
3 -~ Roundabout Option | 5 6,000 2,500

Project Costs (does not include Right of Way)

» Existing Traffic Control Application Control — would require no construction or additional
maintenance costs.

 Alternative 1 - Total cost for the installation of a traffic signal and surrounding improvements is
estimated to be ~$930,000.

» Alternative 3 — Totai cost for the construction of two mini-roundabouts and surrounding
improvements is estimated to be ~$1,160,000.




Political Consideration / Public Input

At this point there has been no public involvement with this project. The City of Isanti and Isanti County
are in support of improving the corridor.

The City and County have approached the owner of the land south of the CSAH 5 & East Dual Boulevard
intersection. At this time the landowner is not interested in selling or otherwise providing that land for
future transportation right-of-way.

F. Alternatives Analysis

Several iterations of alternatives were examined and discussed with the County to identify the four
alternatives analyzed in the report.

G. Conclusion

Two types of control on the CSAH 5 corridor are justified and appropriate for the corridor, a traffic signal
and mini-roundabouts. The two existing intersections on CSAH 5 operate under minor approach stop-
control, where minor approaches currently incur long enough delays and make unsafe turns to enter
CSAH 5. Both Alternative 1 and Alternative 3 offer sound, safe and suitable solutions for traffic operations
on the CSAH 5 corridor. Further discussion and coordination between the County, City and other
stakeholders should be taken to determine the future layout of the corridor.



APPENDIX A

Existing Turning Movement Counts



WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr
6am- 7pm Site Code :3
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's Page No :1
Groups Printed- Cars +
Entrance CSAH 5 Credit Union Dr CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West
Start Time | Right [ Thru [ Left [ Peds | app. 1o | Right | Thru | Left [ Peds [ app.1om | Right | Thru | Left | Peds | app. vt | Right | Thru | Left | Peds | agp. toal | tot. Total
06:00 AM 0 0 1 0 11 12 32 5 0 49 3 0 0 0 3 0 120 0 0 120 173
06:15 AM 0 0 2 0 2| 13 73 4 0 90 1 0 1 0 2 4 120 0 2 126 220
06:30 AM 0 0 1 0 1 10 51 8 0 69 1 1 1 0 3 2 147 0 0 149| 222
06:45 AM 0 0 1 0 1 8 62 10 0 80 1 0 0 0 1 7 142 0 0 149 231
Total 0 0 5 0 5| 43 218 27 0 288 6 1 2 0 9| 13 529 0 2 544 846
07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 ol 13 55 17 0 85 7 0 4 0 11 5 143 1 0 149| 245
07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 5 81 9 0 95 4 1 0 0 5 6 165 0 0 171| 27
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 ol 11 83 16 0 110] 20 0 4 0 24 6 233 1 0 240| 374
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 9 163 26 0  198| 12 1 4 0 17 5 170 0 0 175| 390
Total 0 0 0 0 o] 38 382 68 0 488| 43 2 12 0 571 22 711 2 0 735| 1280
08:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 9 81 8 0 98 8 1 2 0 11 5 128 0 0 133 243
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 8 81 13 0 82 4 3 4 0 11 8 106 0 0 14| 207
08:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 4 58 20 0 82 6 1 9 0 16 9 9 1 0 106| 204
08:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 5 49 9 0 63 4 0 5 0 9 9 82 2 0 93| 165
Total 0 1 0 0 1] 26 249 50 0 325| 22 5 20 0 47| 31 412 3 0 446| 819
09:00 AM 0 0 2 0 2 5 56 12 0 73 6 1 6 0 13 11 117 0 0 128| 216
09:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 5 54 9 0 68| 13 0 5 2 20 6 70 0 0 76| 165
09:30 AM 0 0 1 0 1 2 42 14 0 58| 12 2 9 0 23 11 76 0 0 87| 169
09:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 4 69 14 0 87| 12 1 2 0 15| 13 81 0 0 94| 196
Total 0 1 3 0 4] 16 221 49 0 286| 43 4 22 2 71| 41 344 0 0 385| 746
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 9 48 11 0 68 7 1 10 0 18| 11 73 0 0 84| 170
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 5 52 17 0 74| 17 1 6 0 24 7 79 1 0 87| 185
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 7 68 18 0 93| 13 0 7 0 20| 14 83 0 0 97§ 210
10:45 AM 0 0 1 0 1 4 8 10 0 9% | 13 0 8 0 21 8 85 0 0 93| 211
Total 0 0 1 0 1] 25 250 56 0 331| 50 2 31 0 83| 40 320 1 0 361 776
11:00 AM 1 0 1 0 2 5 71 19 0 95| 12 1 12 0 25| 15 81 0 0 96| 218
11:15 AM 0 0 1 0 1] 10 69 23 0 102| 13 1 6 0 20| 20 85 0 0 105| 228
11:30 AM 0 0 2 0 2 8 64 20 0 92| 17 0 10 0 271 13 90 0 0 103| 224
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 7 8 12 0 99| 14 1 8 0 23| 14 95 0 0 109| 231
Total 1 0 4 0 5| 30 284 74 0 388| 56 3 36 0 95| 62 351 0 0 413 o0t
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 ol 13 80 16 0 109 8 1 13 0 22 7 67 0 0 74| 205
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 9 75 17 0 101] 11 1 10 0 22| 14 04 0 0 108 231
12:30 PM 0 0 1 0 1 5 82 22 0 109]| 11 2 10 1 24| 13 93 0 0 106| 240
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 5 81 15 0 101| 15 4 9 0 28| 17 90 0 0 107]| 236
Total 0 0 1 0 1] 32 318 70 0 420| 45 8 42 1 96| 51 344 0 0 395 912
01:00 PM 0 0 1 0 1 4 70 18 0 92| 13 0o 12 0 25| 20 77 0 0 97| 215
01:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 2 83 15 0 80 9 2 18 1 30 9 61 0 0 70| 180
01:30 PM 1 0 0 0 11 11 80 19 0 110 9 0 8 1 18| 13 83 0 0 96| 225
01:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 9 89 23 0 121| 22 2 9 0 33| 13 101 1 0 115] 269
Total 1 0 1 0 2| 26 302 75 0 403| 53 4 47 2 106| 55 322 1 0 378] 889
02:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 8 94 17 0 119| 23 0 9 0 32 7 75 1 0 83| 234
02:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 5§ 93 21 0 119] 11 1 5 1 18| 13 80 2 0 95| 233
02:30 PM 0 0 1 0 1 9 132 22 0 163| 14 2 1M 0 27| 15 106 0 0 121| 312
02:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 9 116 18 0__143| 20 2 9 0 31 797 1 0 105| 279
Total 0 0 2 0 2| 31 435 78 0 544| 68 5 34 1 108] 42 358 4 0 404| 1058
03:00 PM 1 0 1 0 2| 16 138 24 0 178] 21 1 4 0 26 9 158 0 0 167| 373
03:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0| 17 189 28 0 234| 16 2 7 0 25 17 o1 0 0 108| 367
03:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1| 12 167 18 0 197| 18 0o 13 0 31| 10 130 1 0 141 370
03:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0! 11 159 21 0 191| 17 1 6 0 24| 12 131 1 0  144| 359
Total 2 0 1 0 3| 5 653 91 0 800| 72 4 30 0 106]| 48 510 2 0 560 1469




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr

B6am - 7pm Site Code :3
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :2
Groups Printed- Cars +
Entrance CSAH 5 Credit Union Dr CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West
Start Time | Right [ Thru [_Left | Peds [ asp. o | Right | Thru | Left [ Peds | ap roui | Right | Thru | Left | Peds | ap e | Right | Thru | Left | Peds | App. Tt | Int. Total
04:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 12 189 29 0 230 11 2 8 0 21 18 122 0 0 140 391
04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 10 154 14 0 178 27 2 8 1 38 9 112 0 0 121 337
04:30 PM 2 0 0 0 2 8 191 27 0 226 18 3 10 0 31 16 123 0 0 139 398
04:45 PM [¢] 0 0 0 0 9 172 27 0 208 14 0 5 2 21 i5 98 0 0 113 342
Total 2 0 0 0 2 39 706 97 0 842 70 7 31 3 111 58 455 0 0 513 | 1468
05.00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 7 182 23 0 212 10 0 4 0 14 11 103 0 0 114 340
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 16 188 24 0 228 10 3 9 1 23 16 124 0 0 140 391
05:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 8 137 14 0 159 12 2 16 0 30 19 127 1 0 147 336
05:45 PM 0 0 1 0 1 7 154 17 0 178 11 1 9 0 21 5 106 1 0 112 312
Total 0 0 1 0 1 38 661 78 0 777 43 6 38 1 88 51 460 2 0 5131 1379
06:00 PM 2 0 2 0 4 12 129 25 0 166 8 1 8 0 17 9 91 0 0 100 287
06:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 4 134 21 0 159 13 1 9 0 23 15 87 0 0 102 285
06:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 8 126 24 0 158 12 0 10 0 22 15 100 0 1 116 296
06:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 7 90 15 0 112 8 0 11 0 19 17 97 0 0 114 245
Total 2 0 3 0 5 31 479 85 0 595 41 2 38 0 81 56 375 0 1 432 | 1113
Grand Total 8 2 22 0 32| 431 5158 898 0 6487 | 612 53 383 10 1058 | 570 5491 15 3 6079 13656
Apprch % 25 6.2 688 0 6.6 79.5 138 0 57.8 5 36.2 09 94 903 02 0
Total % 0.1 0 02 0 02| 32 378 66 0 475| 45 04 28 01 771 42 402 041 0 44.5




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr
6am - 7pm Site Code :3
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :3
Entrance CSAH 5 Credit Union Dr CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

Start Time | Right | Thru | Left Pedsl App. Total RightlThrul Left | Peds | app. Tota Right|Thru Left | Peds | app. Total | Right | Thru Leftl Peds] App. Total InLTot:‘

Peak Hour Analysis From 06:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:00 AM

07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 13 55 17 0 85 7 0 4 0 11 5 143 1 0 149 245

07:156 AM 0 0 0 0 0 5 81 9 0 95 4 1 0 0 5 6 165 0 0 171 271

07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 11 83 16 0 110 20 0 4 0 24 6 233 1 0 240 374

07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 9 163 26 0 198 12 1 4 0 17 5 170 0 0 175 390
Total Volume 0 0 0 Q 0 38 382 68 0 488 43 2 12 Q 57 2 1 2 0

735 1280
% _App. Total :
PHF [ .000 .000 .000 .000 .000| .731 .586 .654 _.000 6161 .538 500 .750 .000 .594] 917 763 .500 .000 766 .821

Entrance
Qut In Total
(42 (42|

[ o] ol ol

0]
:?_i?ht Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

I [ o[
8 57 te
H = Ey
= 5 North 4
o ~Ne—>p (—g w
T < = - N
<€ e Peak Hour Begins at 07:00 AM 1
A3 SE =
g | LE+ ars + 2
8 ) o § b
o &

Left Thru Right Peds
12 2 43 0

Out In Total
Credit Union Dr




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr
6am - 7pm Site Code : 3
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's Page No :4
Entrance CSAH 5 Credit Union Dr CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

Start Time | Rignt | Thru | Left | Peds | app. Toul Right'Thrul Left Pedsl App. Total Right|Thru‘ Left Peds‘ App. Total RightlThru Left Feds\ App. Total | Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 06:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 03:15 PM

03:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 17 189 28 0 234 16 2 7 0 25 17 91 0 0 108 367

03:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1 12 167 18 0 197 18 0 13 0 31 10 130 1 0 141 370

03:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 11 159 21 0 191 17 1 6 0 24 12 131 1 0 144 359

04:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 12 189 29 0 230 11 2 8 0 21 18 122 0 0 140 391
Total Volume 1 0 0 0 1 52 704 96 0 852 62 5 34 0 101 57 474 2 0 533 1487
% App. Total

PHF | 250 .000 .000 .000 250 | .765 .931 .828 .000 .910| .861 .625 .654 000 _ .815] .792 .905 .500 .000  .925| .951

Entrance
Out In Total
[_60]

[ 1] of o[ o]
fi?ht Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

[ 2[ |
o L&, o
= S
ol s North 4
< e— d—g ~ O
= 2 =&
=i Peak Hour Begins at 03:15 PM 1 = §
0 £ —
oy
Z ¥ Cars + & A
- M L=
72} 0 (=1
o G | =
2 &l E

Out In Total
Credit Union Dr




<t W0 < O W0 M — <t v o~ ~ ™ N MO0 W0 QMmN N — M — w0 < M)

3
2
3
6
4
16
16
10

13

[ Left [ Bikes [ app. Touat | int. Total

CSAH 5
From West

'3

1

3]

— O M M~ <t O™ O~ M| O N« v« | ™o (=] - O MW — M MO oMo Mmoo O NN

14

O O o oo [=NeNoNolle] [=NeoleoNe =] O — O Ofv [=N=] [=]{=] [=NeoleoNalla] [=NeoNeNo o) [=NeNoNalle] OO0

[=NoleNael o] ~ — O O|N [=NeNolel o] O OO oo oo ojo O OO oo o O OO0 o oo olo O~ 00O

- O M MM O NT MON O~ M~ (=1 o o = [ m o o, — O v« MW — — M N|M o MmO NW O~ NN

o O OO0 o OO oo [ejoleogalle) o O ooo oo oo o O O oo OO0 O« OO0 O~ oo oo

4]

App. Total Rightl Thru

[

> |_App. Tolal

File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr

Site Code
Start Date : 9/10/2019

Page No

Credit Union Dr
From South

OO O [=NeoNeoNal o] [=NeoleNella) [=NeNoNolle] [=N=] o|o OO O |+ [=NeNeNeollo) OO~ Ol [=NeNoNo)

o O O OO o OO oO|o o OO Qoo o oo oo oo o|o O O Oolo o O O olo o O o olo o0 o
o OO oo o OO oo o OO oo o oo oo oo oo [eRaNolele] [N e NoRel o] o O Ooolo o0 o
[=NeNoRolle] [oNeNoNoll=] [=NoNeNelle] [=NeNoNlle) (=N o] [=]l=] [=NeNeNe o) O O ooo O OO0 oo (=Rl

O~ O O|— O OO oo o O o oo O OO oo oo [=]fe] O OO [=NeNoNello] OO~ Oj O O OO

0]

votat | Right | Thru | Left | Bike:

App.

[

WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

Groups Printed- Trucks

CSAH 5
From East

6|

N — O MO O~ v~ m <+ — NN — NO Om - o™ N M O NN O <t N~ O OoOlm — M

o OO OO o OO oo o OO oo o OO oo oo o|o o O O o|lo o O OoOolo (=N oloNelle)] O O O O

O~ O O~ [=NeR=Nolle] [=NeNeNolle] [=NeoleRal o) (=N o] [=l1e] OO~ Ol O O ooo OO ooo oOo0ooo

N OO ™MW (==l ol 3] M~ N (M~ — NO OoOlm o N o< N O —|® NN O <O - O OlN - M

[=NeNoRollo] O v~ OO — OO v« o O o oo — o o O OoOolo o OO oo - O OO OO OO

Entrance
From North

ol

o O O olo [=NeNoRello] O < OO [N oNeNele] oo (=] [=NeNeRello] o O O oo o O O olo oo oo

o O o oo [=NeoNeoNalle] O < O OoOw [=NeNeNelle) [=N=] [=]{=] O O Oooo o o oolo o O o oo cooOoQ

[=NeNoNolle] o OO oo O OO Qoo o OO oo oo oo O O OO0 [=NeNoRaollo] OO ooo oo o

o OO oo O O OO0 [N e Noiel ] [ef=Ne N o] oo ojo o OO oo o OO oo (=N ololelle) [=NeNole)

of

0

Start Time | Right [ Thru | _Left [ Bikes | app. rot | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr
6am - 7pm
Isanti, MN

60's

coco0oo OO0 Ooooo coooo 0O oo ocoocoooo ocoocooo ocooolo ocooo [<}
S=S=E8 ==2=22g ==2Z2Z28 ==ZZ58 == E8 ==Z235g 22338 22228 2222w =222
LLLLE L5 LLLCo C<<LLo << «Co <<«<<o 00O0Ag QOadan|p OQaoo|jp oaoa
owowiF owowlkF owowlkF owowkF ow wFEF owowllF ocowowlk owowlkF owowlkF owo
TN RS ST O o2n.® Y o ¥ erNy ST O emaw TR Q¢
© OO Qo NN N &0 60 60 6o DD ® &8 & = - N AN A e e NN N & IR
=N =N=e] oo Q OO0 O OO0 O ~ -~ - v ~ — v [=NeNa i) OO OO [=NeNo]

Total |




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr
6am - 7pm Site Code :3
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :2
Groups Printed- Trucks
Entrance CSAH 5 Credit Union Dr CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West
Start Time | Rignt | Thru] Left [ Bikes | ap tom | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | ap reer | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | app. Totm | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | app. Total | Int. Total
04:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2
04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 5 5 0 2 0 0 2 8
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 4
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 0 5 5 0 5 0 0 5 19
05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 5
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 4
05:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2
05:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Total 0 0 0 0 0 1 7 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 12
06:00 PM 0 0 0 1 1 | 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ‘ 3
06:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
06:45PM| 0 0 0 1 1] 1 0 00 1] o 0 0 0 o] o 1 0 0 1] 3
Total| o0 0 0 2 2] 1 2 0 0 3] o 0 0 0 of o 2 0 0 2] 7
Grand Total 0 0 0 6 6 8 68 2 0 78 3 0 0 5 8 2 67 3 2 74| 166
Apprch % 0 0 0 100 103 87.2 26 0 375 0 0 625 27 905 41 27
Total % 0 0 0 36 36 48 41 12 0 47| 18 0 0 3 48| 12 404 18 1.2 446




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr
6am - 7pm Site Code :3
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :3
Entrance CSAH 5 Credit Union Dr CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

app.Total | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | app.Totar | Int. Total

L= ]

Start Time | Right | Thru | Left Bikesl ap.Total | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | app. Total Right’Thru Left | Bikes

Peak Hour Analysis From 06:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 06:45 AM

06:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 6
07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 4 4
07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 3 4
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 4] 0 0 4 0 0 4 5
Total Volume ] ] ] 0 0 1 4 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 2 0 14 19

% App. Total
PHF | .000 .000 .000 .000 .000| .250 .333 .000 .000 417 { .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 [ .000 .750 .500 .000 .875 792

Entrance
Out in Total

C_of o ol gl
:{_i?ht Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

E —
& + 2
0 ol E{R QE’
[ 5 North I
1) E—> «— i~
T 5 = EAN _ o
< = Peak Hour Begins at 06:45 AN M 5 2
6 5 5 5
[ Trucks + =
g oa o[ | B
3 ? [
[ 2l ~
Left Thru Right Peds
0 0 0 Q
_d
Out In Total
Ceedit Union Dt




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr File Name : csah 5 & credit union dr
6am - 7pm Site Code :3
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :4
Entrance CSAH 5 Credit Union Dr CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

Start Time | Right | Thru | Left Bikes| App. Total Right|Thru Left Bikes‘ App. Total Right‘Thru\ Left Bikes|

Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 06:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

App. Total RighllThl’u Left Bikes‘ App. Total | Int. Total

04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 5 5 0 2 0 0 2 8
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 4
05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 5
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 4
Total Volume 0 0 0 0 0 1 8 0 0 9 0 0 0 5 5 0 7 0 0 7 21

% App. Total
PHF | .000 .000 .000 .000 .000] .250 .667 .000 .000 .563 | .000 .000 .000 .250 .250 | .000 .875 .000 .000 .875 .656

Entrance
Out In Total

[L_o[ o[ o[ 0]
‘Ri?ht Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

=[] =) -
-EE 51 t 2
= — g
N5 North -
oI L E—> «—3
T < = ]
Fa =M Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM
O 5 -
) ¥ Trucks i
] L4 .
3 [0
a &
L

Left Thru_ Right Peds
[ o[ ¢

Out In Total
LGredit Union Or




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd File Name : csah 5 & e dual blvd
6am - 7pm Site Code :2
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's Page No :1
Groups Printed- Cars +
E Dual Bivd CSAH 5 CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West
Start Time | Right | Thru | Left I Peds I App. Total | Right I Thru | Left ]—Peds [ App. Total | Right | Thru | Left | Peds | App. Totat | Right | Thru | Left | Peds I App. Total | Int. Total
06:00 AM 7 0 13 0 20 2 29 0 0 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 112 11 0 123 174
06:15 AM 8 0 14 1 23 11 61 0 0 72 0 0 0 0 0 0 1M1 15 0 126 221
06:30 AM 8 0 25 0 33 10 42 0 0 52 0 0 0 0 0 0 129 22 0 151 236
06:45 AM 8 0 18 0 26 13 52 0 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0__132 20 0 152 243
Total 31 0 70 1 102 36 184 0 0 220 0 0 0 0 0 0 484 68 0 552 874
07:00 AM 13 0 16 0 29 6 48 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 0 134 15 0 149 232
07:15 AM 8 0 20 0 28 10 73 0 0 83 0 0 0 0 0 0 147 13 0 160 271
07:30 AM 9 0 19 0 28 5 94 0 0 99 0 0 0 1 1 0 229 14 0 243 371
07:45 AM 13 0 11 0 24 15 143 0 0 158 0 0 0 0 0 0 157 14 0 171 353
Total 43 0 66 0 109 36 358 0 0 394 0 0 0 1 1 0 667 56 0 723 | 1227
08:00 AM 9 0 18 0 27 14 69 0 0 83 0 0 0 0 0 0 114 15 0 129 239
08:15 AM 13 0 13 0 26 12 55 0 0 67 0 0 0 0 0 0 101 15 0 116 209
08:30 AM 17 0 15 0 32 6 57 0 0 63 0 0 0 0 0 0 85 7 0 92 187
08:45 AM 10 0 15 0 25 3 49 0 0 52 0 0 0 0 0 0 89 8 0 97 174
Total 49 0 61 0 110 35 230 0 0 265 0 0 0 0 0 0 389 45 0 434 809
09:00 AM 6 0 28 0 34 2 64 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 0 92 13 0 105 205
09:15 AM 7 0 12 0 19 7 52 0 0 59 0 0 0 2 2 0 67 13 0 80 160
09:30 AM 10 0 10 0 20 5 49 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 0 76 3 1 80 154
09:45 AM 4 0 6 0 10 9 57 [¢] 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 0 88 6 0] 94 170
Total 27 0 56 0 83 23 222 0 0 245 0 0 0 2 2 0 323 35 1 359 689
10:00 AM 9 0 9 0 18 10 48 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 0 72 6 0 78 154
10:15 AM 16 0 15 0 31 8 50 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 0 74 11 0 85 174
10:30 AM 7 0 15 0 22 6 70 0 0 76 0 0 0 0 0 0 83 10 0 93 191
10:45 AM 9 0 10 0 19 9 86 0 0 95 0 0 0 0 0 0 88 9 0 97 211
Total 41 0 49 0 a0 33 254 0 0 287 0 0 0 0 0 0 317 36 0 353 730
11:00 AM 12 0 10 0 22 1 66 0 0 77 0 0 0 0 0 0 89 6 0 95 194
1115 AM 14 0 17 0 31 9 64 0 0 73 0 0 0 0 0 0 87 9 0 96 200
11:30 AM 15 0 17 0 32 9 66 0 0 75 0 0 0 0 0 0 82 9 0 91 198
11:45 AM 6 0 14 [¢] 20 12 76 [¢] 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 0 92 11 0 103 211
Total 47 0 58 0 105 41 272 0 0 313 0 0 0 0 0 0 350 35 0 385 803
12:00 PM 19 0 12 0 31 14 72 0 0 86 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 10 0 72 189
12:15 PM 13 0 25 0 38 15 77 0 0 92 0 0 0 0 0 0 88 8 0 96 226
12:30 PM 9 0 15 0 24 12 79 0 0 91 0 0 0 1 1 0 85 13 0 98 214
12:45 PM 11 0 14 0 25 8 82 0 0 90 0 0 Q 0 0 0 95 13 0 108 223
Total 52 0 66 0 118 49 310 0 0 359 0 0 0 1 1 0 330 44 0 374 852
01:00 PM 8 0 14 0 22 16 68 0 0 84 0 0 0 0 0 0 81 9 1 91 197
01:15 PM 14 0 15 0 29 10 71 0 0 81 0 0 0 1 1 0 57 7 1 65 176
01:30 PM 9 0 13 0 22 12 84 0 0 96 0 0 0 1 1 0 a3 4 0 97 216
01:45 PM 9 0 12 0 21 11 83 0 0 94 0 0 0 0 0 0 90 17 0 107 222
Tofal 40 0 54 0 94 49 306 0 0 355 0 0 0 2 2 0 321 37 2 360 811
02:00 PM 15 0 13 0 28 6 96 0 0 102 0 0 0 0 0 0 72 13 0 85 215
02:15 PM 7 0 11 0 18 8 94 0 0 102 0 0 0 1 1 0 87 6 0 93 214
02:30 PM 13 0 15 0 28 9 132 0 0 141 0 0 0 0 0 0 105 11 0 116 285
02:45 PM 16 0 15 0 31 9 113 0 0 122 0 0 0 0 0 0 91 11 0 102 255
Total 51 0 54 0 105 32 435 0 0 467 0 0 0 1 1 0 355 41 0 396 969
03:00 PM 20 0 1 0 31 8 137 0 0 145 0 0 0 0 0 0 157 13 0 170 346
03:15 PM 27 0 17 0 44 16 185 0 0 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 93 15 0 108 353
03:30 PM 17 0 27 0 44 13 164 0 0 177 0 0 0 0 0 0 110 10 0 120 341
03:45 PM 25 0 16 [¢] 41 16 158 [4] 0 174 0 0 0 1 1 0 128 12 0 140 356
Total 89 0 71 0 160 53 644 0 0 697 0 0 0 1 1 0 488 50 0 538 | 1396




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd File Name : csah 5 & e dual bivd
6am - 7pm Site Code :2
[santi, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's Page No :2
Groups Printed- Cars +
E Dual Blvd CSAH 5 CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West
Start Time | Right | Thru | _Left | Peds | ap.wa | Rignt | Thru |_Left | Peds | app. o | Right | Thru [ Left | Peds | ap. o | Right | Thru | Left | Peds | App. Totan | Int. Total
04:00 PM 18 0 18 1 37 11 170 0 0 181 0 0 0 0 0 0 124 10 1 135 353
04:15 PM 21 0 12 0 33 12 155 0 0 167 0 0 0 1 1 0 117 9 0 126 327
04:30 PM 21 0 13 0 34 12 206 0 0 218 0 0 0 0 0 0 112 15 0 127 379
04:45 PM 21 0 17 0 38 16_ 160 0 0 176 0 0 0 2 2 0 96 19 3 118 334
Total 81 0 60 1 142 51 691 0 0 742 0 0 0 3 3 0 449 53 4 506 | 1393
05:00 PM 21 0 12 0 33 8 158 0 0 166 0 0 0 1 1 0 101 20 0 121 321
05:15 PM 21 0 15 0 36 23 167 0 0 190 0 0 0 0 0 0 132 10 0 142 368
05:30 PM 26 0 11 1 38 22 154 0 0 176 0 0 0 0 0 0 130 20 1 151 365
05:45 PM 14 0 21 0 35 17 138 0 0 155 0 0 0 0 0 0 86 22 1 109 299
Total 82 0 59 1 142 70 617 0 0 687 0 0 0 1 1 0 449 72 2 523 | 1353
06:00 PM 24 0 15 1 40 18 122 0 0 140 0 0 0 0 0 0 92 12 1 1085 285
06:15 PM 16 0 6 0 22 1 129 0 0 140 0 0 0 0 0 0 96 14 0 110 272
06:30 PM 17 0 11 1 29 21 120 0 0 141 0 0 0 1 1 0 104 5 1 110 281
06:45 PM 14 0 15 0 29 7 90 0 0 97 0 0 0 0 0 0 97 23 0 120 246
Total 71 0 47 2 120 57 461 0 0 518 0 0 0 1 1 0 389 54 2 445 | 1084
Grand Total | 704 0o 771 5 1480 | 565 4984 0 0 5549 0 0 0 13 13 0 5311 626 11 5948 | 12990
Apprch % | 47.6 0 521 0.3 10.2 89.8 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 893 105 0.2
Total % 5.4 0 59 0 11.4 4.3 384 0 0 427 0 0 0 01 0.1 0 409 48 0.1 458




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd File Name : csah 5 & e dual bivd
6am - 7pm Site Code : 2
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :3
E Dual Bivd CSAH 5 CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

Start Time | Right | Thru | Left Peds| App. Total Right|Thru‘ Left | Peds | app. Totat Right|Thru Left | Peds | app. Total RightlThru Left Peds‘ App. Total Int.TolaIW

Peak Hour Analysis From 06:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 8 0 20 0 28 10 73 0 0 83 0 0 0 0 0 0 147 13 0 160 271
07:30 AM 9 0 19 0 28 5 94 0 0 99 0 0 0 1 1 0 229 14 0 243 371
07:45 AM 13 0 11 0 24 15 143 0 0 158 0 0 0 0 0 0 157 14 0 171 353
08:00 AM 9 0 18 0 27 14 69 0 0 83 0 0 0 0 0 0 114 15 0 129 239
Total Volume 39 0 68 0 107 44 379 0 0 423 0 0 0 1 1 0 647 56 0 703 1234

% App. Total
PHF | .750 .000 .850 .000 _ .955( .733 .663 .000 .000 .669| .000 .000 .000 .250 .250| .000 .706 .933 .000 .723[ .832

E Dual Blvd
In Total

Out

[_39] o[ 68] 0]
fj;ht Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

o —
frst ﬁ_f + 2

— =
5 5 North 4
e ,'E_’ 4—5 %
= Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM .

= [ g

& 4 Cars + I3
= of |

° [

& &l

Left Thru Right Peds
0 0 0 1
C_d

Out In Total




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & E Dual Bivd File Name : csah 5 & e dual bivd
6am - 7pm Site Code : 2
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's Page No :4
E Dual Bivd CSAH 5 CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

Start Time Right|Thru Left | Peds | app. Toter Right‘Thru Left Peds‘ App. Total RightlThru Left | Peds

Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 06:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 03:45 PM

App. Totar | Right \ Thru Leftl Peds | App. Total | Int. Total

03:45 PM 25 0 16 0 4 16 158 0 0 174 0 0 0 1 1 0 128 12 0 140 356
04:00 PM 18 0 18 1 37 1 170 0 0 181 0 0 0 0 0 0 124 10 1 135 353
04:15 PM 21 0 12 0 33 12 155 0 0 167 0 0 0 1 1 o 117 9 0 126 327
04:30 PM 21 0 13 0 34 12 206 0 0 218 0 0 0 0 0 0 112 16 0 127 379
Total Volume 85 0 59 1 145 51 689 0 0 740 0 0 0 2 2 0 481 46 1 528 1415

% App. Total
PHF | .850 .000 .819 .250 .884| .797 .836 .000 .000 .849 ] .000 .000 .000 .500 .500 ] .000 .939 .767 .250 .943 .933

E Dual Bivd

85] of __59] 1]
:ej;m Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

J9 (g M
/9] Sle 4 4+ 2
,9 3 Z2 4
= 5 North 4
S E— —33 e
= E% €
= Peak Hour Begins at 03.45 PM M FRE 2
F — (=]
|
2 v Cars + iy 18
e el ,:,‘6'
8 8 0
a =) o

|—D

Left Thru_Right Peds
[ o 0




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S

Minneapolis, MN

File Name : csah 5 & e dual blvd

Site Code

CSAH 5 & E Dual Bivd
6am- 7pm

Isanti, MN

60's

12

Start Date : 9/10/2019

1

Page No

o oONO LTTOO NOCODOE VAN ONOBNE NOMOT- TWWON O MNOO= WNNNT
s - - ~ - ™~ - —|m ~N - ~ - %) o~
2
£
M1 NAWw TOoNIN Oromo Mo Moot oM TONSO NTTWN O NN©® O~
2 -~ -~ -~ -~ -~ -~ -
|
sglo ocolo ovr-ool-r coooo coooo ©Cco0OO©O OOO0OO0OO0 COoOOO0O ©oOoOrr ©OoOoo© ooooo
4
B| @
w ol |
MW%O o0l COoOOvr COMAI MO0t WVrMWO® +TrWr@ OrecrlM® NNT«—|[©0 ©®ON+-©Oo «voolw
o3 €2
[S=Inn
Fm1 NQD TNANNO OCrm—jd O-OO0+~ NOOON COr-N®M N+~ OCNO®MW MO« — v« OOolN
E -
T
slo oolo ocococolc CcoOCOO COOOO COOOO OOOOO0 OO0 00000 00000 ooooQo
[=]
o
jJlo ool 00000 OCOOEC OOOCOO ©OO0O0QO 00000 00000 O00O0rr 00000 O©0O0O00
2
|
sgjJo ©oolo oocooo ©COOOO COOO© 00000 00000 00000 O0O0rr 0O0O0OO0O©C OO0OoOo
of =
=
(.
dlzlo ©oolo coooe ©COo0e 00000 00000 00000 O00O00 00000 00000 00000
gl
o |
Lislo ocolo ocococoeo ocoooo ococoooo ooooo ococooo ooooo ooooo oocoooo o©oooo
£
g (=
m (-
= zlo oolo ocoocoolo ocococoo ococooo ocoooo ocoooo ocoocooo oocoolo ocoooo o©oooo
O
.% ['4
c AN Owo COoOTNM Nr-N~© ~—NOOMm ONOMO +—ONSO ~Nvr®Mh —-OoON —omNN® NNO ol
g | =
[72] <
=1 -
3 slo oolo coocoo coooo ©cCOoo©0 C00COO©C 00000 O0OO0OO0OO0 00000 0000 ©O0O0Ooo
= X
B = =
5%8
ME%O ool coooo COCOO OoOOO0 OO0 Coooo ocooooo coooo ocoooo o©oooo
o §|d
C_HI
Sl omin coonNN NrNvoO ONOON ONO®MWL TrNYO TNTOh OO0+~ ToN~N~ NOOON
F=
=
zlo o+« ocovolr cooolo roOO+ COOOO ONOON COCOO0COO 00O+ COOx«(v ONOON
[=)]
4
MO TN rr et O TWO ~F e NTONT ON®OO NONT(HN MOO—|Oo NTOMo oo
K] -~ -~ -~ -~ -~
<
glo oolo ococoooo ovoo¥ COOOOO COOOOO COr-Or OO0OO0OO©0 CO0OO0 O0O0OOoC ©O0 o000
he =
2T
m O
mNmO =N vt 00000 OOFrTNN TOOOr COO«r 00000 Or-OoOfr OrOorfN OWN«Om
=2 =
a9
Wilslo ocolo coocolo cocoolo ococoole coooo coooo ocoooo oocoocoe ocoooo ©oooo
£
[=
sglo ocolo ococoolo corwo —TOoOO —TONO ONTND NONC|N OWO—|(® N®MONKN + o~
5 -
o
US =S8 ===S58 ===2=8 ==2=S=g ===:=2g =253 ==2=23g ==2=238 ==2=2=2g ==2==2&
Eld <8 «<<<CE <<C<LIYET <<<LLE <<<ICS <<<<5 0Lonnlsg odono|s ooonjs aaan|s
HFo owlkF owowlkF ocwouwllk ocowowkE owowlkEr ocowowlk ocwowkHFE ocwowbk owowlkE owowlkH
£ 9% SN QoY oTew enew IR CINA BN QTN e O¥ o OW
e O o [ N O O B © S B [eX=-R-X=] v NN NN = NN NN BB OD
Hle ©9 o oo cooo SO S S e - - cooo [<X=-X=R=] [<X=-R=X-]



WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd File Name :csah 5 & e dual blvd
6am - 7pm Site Code :2
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's Page No :2
Groups Printed- Trucks
E Dual Blvd CSAH 5 T CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West
Start Time | Right | Thru [ Left | Bikes | app v | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | app, row | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | app ol | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes 1 app. Total |_int, Total
04:00 PM 1 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 3 1 4 1
04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 4
04:30 PM 0 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 2 0 3 5 13
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 4
Total 1 0 0 3 4 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 0 7 7 0 5 3 4 12 32
05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 4
05:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 5
05:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
05:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Total 0 0 1 0 1 2 6 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 12
oe:oopm\ 0 0 0 1 1| 1 0 0 0 1‘ 0 0 0 0 0| 0 0 0 0 o’ 2
06:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
06:45PM| 0 0 0 1 11 0 o o o ol 0o o o o o] o 1 0 0 1 2
Total| © 0 0 2] 1 0 0 0 11 o 0 0 0 ol o 0 0 2] 5
Grand Total | 58 0 17 10 85| 12 60 0 0 72 0 0 0 8 8 0 55 53 6 114] 279
Apprch % | 68.2 0 20 11.8 16.7 83.3 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 482 465 53
Total % | 20.8 0 61 36 305| 43 215 0 0 258 0 0 0 29 29 0 197 19 22 409




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd File Name : csah 5 & e dual blvd
6am - 7pm Site Code : 2
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :3
E Dual Bivd CSAH 5 CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

app. Totat | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes

Start Time | Right | Thru | Left | Bikes | app. Total RightIThru| Left | Bikes

Peak Hour Analysis From 06:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 11:00 AM

App. Total Right’Thru Left | Bikes | App. Total Inl.Tolal]

11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2
11:15 AM 2 0 0 0 2 2 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 6
11:30 AM 4 0 0 1 5 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 6 13
11:45 AM 2 0 1 0 3 0 4 0 0 4 Q 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 3 10
Total Volume 8 0 1 1 10 2 8 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 8 0 1 31

% App. Total
PHF | .500 .000 .250 .250 500 .250 .500__.000 .000 .625 | .000 .000 .000 .000 .0001 .000 .375 .400 .000 458 .596

E Dual Blvd
Out In Total
[ 10]

[T

8 "o 4T 1
fi?m Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

Total
27l
[ 8]
Left
N
M
|14
E2N
mno

ES
© 5 North 4
o E—> «—3 o
T 5 - € o ol
< ol Peak Hour Begins at 11:00 AN = FLE %
O = o] &
i Trucks 32

Out
8l
o]
Peds Tl?

spad _ ¥o7
O T
2101

9 1 p

Left Thru Right Peds
0 0 0 0

Ca L4

Out In Total




WSB & Associates
701 Xenia Ave S
Minneapolis, MN

CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd File Name : csah 5 & e dual blvd
B6am - 7pm Site Code :2
Isanti, MN Start Date : 9/10/2019
60's PageNo :4
E Dual Blvd CSAH5 CSAH 5
From North From East From South From West

Start Time | Right [ Thru [ Left | Bikes | app. Total RightlThru Left Bikes\ App. Total RightlThru Left | Bikes

Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 06:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:00 PM
04:00 PM 0 0 0

App. Tolal Right\Thl’u Left Bikesl App. Total Im.Tot:‘

1 1 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 3 1 4 1

04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 4
04:30 PM 0 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 2 0 3 5 13
04:45 PM 0 0 Q 0 0 Q 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 4
Total Volume 1 "] o] 3 4 [¢] 9 o o] 9 o 0 o 7 7 o] 5 3 4 12 32

% App. Total
PHF | 250 .000 .000 .250 .333 ] .000 .450 .000 .000 1450 | .000 .000 .000 .350 .350 | .000 625 .250 .333 .600 .615

E Dual Bivd
Out In Total
3

[ 1] of of 3]
fi?ht Thru Left Peds

Peak Hour Data

North

Peak Hour Begins at 04:00 PM = =
Trucks 3

S HYSO

CSAH 5
In
C 1 C 12 22
I
Peds :?l?t Tlru LTI:
6

Qut
4
spad  ¥81
G |0
]
EI10L

Left Thru Right Peds
0 0 4] 7

C o 7 C 7
Out In Total




APPENDIX B

Crash Diagrams



CSAH 5 & East Dual Bivd/Credit Union Dr, Isanti County, MN

5/24/2018
6/1/2019
4/30/2018

i

Crash Diagram

July 2016 - June 2019

-————6/6/2017

_

7/912016

71512016 —T

f_ 3/30/2019

—

Symbols
Moving Vehicle
—_— «
Backing Vehicle

- —————— «

Non-moving Vehicle

Pedestrian
—X
Parked Vehicle

Fixed Object

U
Bicycle

Go—n
Fatality
@

Injury

Q

Collision Types
Rear End

—_—

Head-On
—_—

Side Swipe
M

Out of Control
—a 0o 4

Left Turn
.

Right Angle

—’T

Classification by Type

Side Swipe

Rear End

Right Angle Left

Turn Pedestrian

Bicycle

Other/Unknown

Fatal

0

0

0

0 0

0

0

Personal Injury

Prop. Damage

Total

0
0
0

0
4
4

0
3
3

0 0
0 0
0 0

0
0
0

0
1
1

Light
L. = Daylight
DN = Dawn
DU = Dusk
DL = Dark Lighted
DO = Dark, Lights Off
D = Dark, Unlighted

Weather

Pavement

Time of Year

Time of Day

Clear

Dry

Winter (Dec - Feb)

6:00 AM - 10:00 AM

Cloudy

Wet

Spring (Mar - May)

10:00 AM - 4:00 PM

Fog

lcy

Summer (Jun - Aug)

4.00 PM - 7:00 PM

Rain

Show

Fall

(Sep - Nov)

7:00 PM - 12:00 AM

Sleet

Unknown

Snow

Mist

Unknown

12:00 AM - 6:00 AM

Weather
C =Clear
CL = Cloudy
R = Rain
S = Snow
SL = Sleet
F =Fog

Unknown

Surface
D =Dry
I =lcy
W = Wet
S=Snow




APPENDIX C

Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis












LOCATION: CSAH 5 & E Dual Bivd/Credit Union Dr
COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019
OPERATOR: Mallori

Page 4

I WARRANT § - SCHOOL CROSSING

Is the principal reason for the signal to accommodate the movement of schoolchildren across the major road?

Are there at least 20 schoolchildren crossing the major road in the highest crossing hour? N/A
If both above questions are answered yes, calculate the available gaps below:

Are needed gaps greater than available gaps? N/A
Is crossing within 300' of other signal or stop sign controlling the major approach? N/A
If Yes, will proposed signal inhibit the progression of traffic on the major approach? N/A

Warrant 5 met?

| WARRANT 6 - COORDINATED SIGNAL SYSTEM

Part A
Is the street a one-way street or a street that has traffic predominately in one direction?
Do adjacent traffic control signals provide adequate platooning?

Part B

Is the street a two-way street?

Do adjacent traffic control signals provide adequate platooning?
Will proposed signal provide for progressive operation of traffic?
Will proposed signal spacing be less than 1000 feet?

Provide proof of platooning issues:

No
N/A

Yes
Yes
N/A

N/A

N/A

Warrant 6 met?




LOCATION: CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd/Credit Union Dr
COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019
OPERATOR: Mallori

Page 5

WARRANT 7 - CRASH EXPERIENCE

THRESHOLDS 1A/1B/1C: 336/504 84/42  84/42

HOUR MAJOR | MAJOR | TOTAL | MINOR | MINOR | MAJOR {MINOR2 |MNOR4| ot
APP 1 APP. 3 1+3 APP.2 | APP.4 7AB 7 AB 7AB S

12.00 AM - 1:00 AM
1:00 AM - 2:00 AM /
2:00 AM - 3:00 AM /
3:00 AM - 4:00 AM /
4:00AM - 5:00 AM /
5:00 AM - 6:00 AM /
6:00 AM - 7:00 AM 557 10 567 294 103 XIX /
7:00 AM - 8:00 AM 734 57 791 491 113 XIX X XIX XIX
X
X
X

/ / / /

(o] [e][=] (o] o] []

olojojo|o|e
(o] [a] [e] o] =] [o)
[a][a][e] o] (o] ()
~p~f~]~]~
~~]~]~]~

8:00 AM - 9:00 AM 444 47 491 334 116 XX XIX X/IX
9:00 AM - 10:00 AM 363 69 432 289 90 XIX XIX XIX
10:00 AM - 11:00 AM 364 83 447 337 101 XIX XIX XIX
11:00AM - 12:00 PM 396 96 492 398 114 XIX XIX XIX XiX
12:00PM - 1:00 PM 384 95 479 428 123 XIX XIX XIX XIX
1:00PM - 2:00 PM 369 105 474 406 104 XX XX XIX XiX
2:00 PM - 3:.00 PM 410 107 517 550 114 XIX XIX XIX XiIX
3:00 PM - 4:00 PM 545 106 651 804 170 XIX XIX XIX

XIX
400PM - 500 PM 510 108 618 851 142 XIX XIX XIX XiX
5:00 PM_ - 6:00 PM 524 87 611 785 142 XX XX XX XiX
6:00PM_- 7:00 PM 445 81 526 598 118 XIX X XIX XIX
7:00PM - 8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
8:00PM - 9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
9:00 PM - 10:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
10:00PM - 11:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
11:00 PM - 12:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / !
Required
Met (Hr) Hr)
Warrant 7 (Cond A) 13 8
Warrant 7 (Cond B) 13 8
Has there been an adequare trial of aiternatives that has failed to reduce the crash frequency?
Crash History (within a 12-month period)
Number of
Crashes:
Right Angle: 2 TOTAL: 2
Left Turn: Required: 5
Pedestrian:

Warrant 7 met?


















LOCATION: CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd
COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019
OPERATOR: Mallori

Page 4

| WARRANT 5 - SCHOOL CROSSING .

Is the principal reason for the signal to accommodate the movement of schoolchildren across the major road?

Are there at least 20 schoolchildren crossing the major road in the highest crossing hour?

N/A
if both above questions are answered yes, calculate the available gaps below:
Are needed gaps greater than available gaps? N/A
Is crossing within 300" of other signal or stop sign controlling the major approach? N/A
If Yes, will proposed signal inhibit the progression of traffic on the major approach? N/A

Warrant 5 met?

| WARRANT 6 - COORDINATED SIGNAL SYSTEM

Part A

Is the street a one-way street or a street that has traffic predominately in one direction?
Do adjacent traffic control signals provide adequate platooning?

Part B

Is the street a two-way street?

Do adjacent traffic control signals provide adequate platooning?
Will proposed signal provide for progressive operation of traffic?

Will proposed signal spacing be less than 1000 feet?

Provide proof of platooning issues:

No
N/A

Yes
Yes
N/A

N/A

N/A

Warrant 6 met?




LOCATION: CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd

COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019

OPERATOR: Mallori

WARRANT 7 - CRASH EXPERIENCE

Page 5

THRESHOLDS 1AMB/IMC: 336/504 84/42  84/42
HOUR MAJOR | MAJOR | TOTAL | MINOR | MINOR [ MAJOR | MINOR 2 | MINOR 4 SMAEJITE
APP1 | APP.3 143 APP.2 | APP. 4 7 AB 7AB 7AB 7 (A/B)

12:00 AM - 1:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
1:00 AM - 2:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
2:00 AM - 3:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
3:00 AM - 4:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
4:00 AM - 5:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
500 AM - 6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / I/
6:00 AM - 7:00 AM 557 0 557 294 103 X/IX / XIX X/IX
7:00 AM - 8:00 AM 734 0 734 491 113 XIX / XIX XIX
8:00 AM - 9:00 AM 444 0 444 334 116 XIX / XIX XIX
9:00 AM - 10:00 AM 363 0 363 289 90 XIX / XIX XIX

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM 364 0 364 337 101 XIX / XIX XIX

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM 396 0 396 398 114 XIX / XIX XIX

12:00 PM - 1:00 PM 384 0 384 428 123 XIX / XIX XIX
1:00 PM - 2:00 PM 369 0 369 406 104 XIX / XIX XIX
2:00 PM - 3:00 PM 410 0 410 550 114 XIX / XIX XIX
3:00PM - 4:00 PM 545 0 545 804 170 XIX / XIX XIX
4:00 PM - 5:00 PM 510 0 510 851 142 XIX / XIX XIX
5:00 PM - 6:00 PM 524 0 524 785 142 XIX / XIX XIX
6:00 PM_ - 7:00 PM 445 0 445 598 118 XIX / XIX XIX
7:00 PM - 8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
8:00 PM - 9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
9:00 PM - 10:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /

10:00 PM - 11:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /

11:00 PM_ - 12:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /

Met (Hr) Re(q:r')red
Warrant 7 (Cond A) 13 8
Warrant 7 (Cond B) 13 8

Has there been an adequare trial of alternatives that has failed to reduce the crash frequency?

Crash History (within a 12-month period)

Right Angle:
Left Turn:
Pedestrian:

Warrant 7 met?

Number of
Crashes:

2

TOTAL:
Required:



















LOCATION: CSAR 5 & Credit Union Dr
COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019
OPERATOR: Mallori

Page 4

WARRANT § - SCHOOL CROSSING

Is the principal reason for the signal to accommodate the movement of schoolchildren across the major road?
Are there at least 20 schoolchildren crossing the major road in the highest crossing hour? N/A

If both above questions are answered yes, calculate the available gaps below:

Are needed gaps greater than available gaps? N/A

Is crossing within 300" of other signal or stop sign controlling the major approach? N/A

If Yes, will proposed signal inhibit the progression of traffic on the major approach? N/A

Warrant 5 met?

WARRANT 6 - COORDINATED SIGNAL SYSTEM

Part A
Is the street a one-way street or a street that has traffic predominately in one direction?
Do adjacent traffic control signals provide adequate platooning?

Part B

Is the street a two-way street?

Do adjacent traffic control signals provide adequate platooning?
Will proposed signal provide for progressive operation of traffic?
Will proposed signal spacing be less than 1000 feet?

Provide proof of platooning issues:

No
N/A

Yes
Yes
N/A

N/A

N/A

Warrant 6 met?




LOCATION: CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr

COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019

OPERATOR: Mallori

WARRANT 7 - CRASH EXPERIENCE

Page 5

THRESHOLDS 1A/1B/1C: 336/504 84/42  84/42
HOUR MAJOR { MAJOR | TOTAL | MINOR | MINOR | MAJOR | MINOR 2 | MINOR 4 S'ETE
APP1 | APP.3 143 APP.2 | APP.4 7AB 7AB 7AB
7 (A/B)

12:00 AM - 1:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
1:00 AM - 2:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / ]
2:00 AM - 3:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
3:00 AM - 4:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
4:00 AM - 5:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
5:00 AM - 6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
6:00 AM - 7:00 AM 529 9 538 288 5 XIX / / /
7:00 AM - 8:00 AM 713 57 770 488 0 XX /X / X
8:.00 AM - 9:00 AM 415 47 462 325 1 XIX X / X
9:00 AM - 10:00 AM 344 69 413 286 4 XX X / X

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM 321 83 404 331 1 XIX X / IX

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM 351 95 446 388 5 XIX XIX / XIX

12:00 PM - 1:00 PM 344 95 439 420 1 XIX XIX / XiX
1:.00PM - 2:.00 PM 323 104 427 403 2 XIX XIX / XIX
2:00PM - 3:00 PM 362 107 469 544 2 XIX XIX / XIX
3:.00PM - 4:00 PM 512 106 618 800 3 XIX XIX / XIX
4:00 PM - 5:00 PM 455 108 563 842 2 XX XX / XIX
5:00PM - 6:00 PM 462 87 549 777 1 XIX XX / XIX
6:00PM - 7:00 PM 375 81 456 595 5 XIX X / X
7:00PM - 800 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
8:00PM - 9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
9:00 PM - 10:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /

10:00PM - 11:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /
11:00 PM - 12:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 / / / /

Met (Hr) Re(q'_‘i‘r')red
Warrant 7 (Cond A) 7 8
Warrant 7 (Cond B) 12 8

Has there been an adequare trial of alternatives that has failed to reduce the crash frequency?

Crash History (within a 12-month period)

Right Angle:
Left Turn:
Pedestrian:

Warrant 7 met?

Number of
Crashes:

2

TOTAL:
Required:










APPENDIX D
All-Way Stop Warrant Analysis






LOCATION: CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd/Credit Union Dr Page 2
COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019

OPERATOR: Mallori

OTHER WARRANTS

Is a traffic control signal justified?

Amount of correctible crashes:
Right-Turn
Left-Turn
Right-Angle 2
Other

Is there a need to control left-turn conflicts?
Is there a need to control vehicle/pedestrian conflicts near a high pedestrian generator?
Are there sight issues (inability to see conflicting traffic) at the intersection?

Is the intersection between two residential neighborhood collector (through) streets of similar design and operating
characteristics where muiti-way stop control would improve traffic operational characteristics of the intersection?

-

Notes/explanations:

Other warrants met? | Yes (Signal Justified







LOCATION: CSAH 5 & E Dual Blvd Page 2
COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019

OPERATOR: Mallori

OTHER WARRANTS

-

Is a traffic control signal justified? Yes

Amount of correctible crashes:
Right-Turn
Left-Turn
Right-Angle
Other

Is there a need to control left-turn conflicts?
Is there a need to control vehicle/pedestrian conflicts near a high pedestrian generator?
Are there sight issues (inability to see conflicting traffic) at the intersection?

Is the intersection between two residential neighborhood collector (through) streets of similar design and operating
characteristics where multi-way stop control would improve traffic operational characteristics of the intersection?

R

Notes/explanations:

Other warrants met? | Yes (Signal Justified







LOCATION: CSAH 5 & Credit Union Dr Page 2
COUNTY: Isanti
REF. POINT:
DATE: 9/27/2019

OPERATOR: Mallori

OTHER WARRANTS

Is a traffic control signal justified? Yes

Amount of correctible crashes:
Right-Turn
Left-Turn
Right-Angle 2
Other

Is there a need to control left-turn conflicts?
Is there a need to control vehicle/pedestrian conflicts near a high pedestrian generator?
Are there sight issues (inability to see conflicting traffic) at the intersection?

Is the intersection between two residential neighborhood collector (through) streets of similar design and operating
characteristics where multi-way stop contro! would improve traffic operational characteristics of the intersection?

000 L

Notes/explanations:

Other warrants met? | Yes (Signal Justified




APPENDIX E1
Alternative Layouts 1-4















APPENDIX E2

Alternative Cost Estimates



OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

0SB Project: CSAH 5 & EAST DUAL BOULEVARD IMPROVEMENTS: ALTERNATIVE NO. |
Project Location: CITY OF ISANTI, MN
11SB Project No.: 014712-000
Date: 17712020
PROJECT TOTAL ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION MILL AND OVERLAY
Ttem )
Description Unit Unit Price
No.
Estimated Estimated Estimuted Estimated Estimated Estimated
quinlig Cuost (lnlnllg c?i' quant 2 Cust
2021501 MOBILIZATION LUMP SUM $60,000.00 1 $60.000.00 T $60.000.00
2102503 [PAVEMENT MARKING REMOVAL LIN FT 5200 930 $1,860.00 930 186000
2104502 REMOVE SIGN EACH $35.00 %6 $510.00 6 $910.00
7104503 SAWING CONCRETE PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LINFT 5.00 25 $125.00 25 $125.00
2104503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LIN FT 200 75 $5,51000 7 $5,51000
2104503 REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER FT $4.00 4 $9,940.00 4 $5,940.00
2104 REMOVE BITUMINOUS WALK Q 1.00 I $1,125.00 1 $1,12500
2104 [REMOVE CONCRETE WALK QFI 150 400 $14,100.00 400 $14,100.00
2104, REMOVE BITUMINGUS PAVEMENT QF] $2.00 9620 $19,240.00 5620 $19,240.00
2106507 EXCAVATION - COMMON CUYD 10.00 350 $3,500.00 350
2106507 [EXCAVATION - SUBGRADE CUYD 14.00 1000 $14,000.00 1000
2106507 SELECT GRANULAR EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD 18.00 1000 $18,000.00 1000
2106507 COMMON EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD $10.00 100 $1.000.00 100
211507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 CUYD $26.00 800 $20,800.00 800 $20,800.00
2232504 MILL BITUMINOUS SURFACE (2.0%) SQYD. $3.00 7500 $22.500.00 7500 $22,500.00
2301 504 CONCRETE PAVEMENT 7.0% SQ YD $G8.00
2360500 TYPE SP 9.5 NON WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3.5) TON $72.00 360 $25.920.00 360 $25,920.00
2360.509 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3.C) ToN $76.00 1150 $87.400.00 300 $22.500.00 850 $64.600.00
3503503 15" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS V TINFT $62.00 750 $15.500.00 2350 $15.500.00
3503 503 18" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS IT LINFT $86.50 100 $8.650.00 100 $8,650.00
2503.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER EACH $1,700.00 2 $3,400.00 $3,400.00
3503.602 CONNECT INTO EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURE EACH $1,500.00 2 $3,800.00 2 $3,800.00
2506502 CASTING ASSEMBLY. EACH $850.00 7 $5.950.00 7 $5.950.00
2506502 ADJUST FRAME AND RING CASTING EACH $250.00 7 $500.00 2 $500.00
2506,303 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE DESIGN 48-4020 TIN FT $420.00 30 $12,600.00 30 $12,600.00
2521318 4" CONCRETE WALK SQFT $5.00 10100 $50,500.00 T0100 $50,500.00
2521518 3" BITUMINOUS WALK. SQFT $4.00 1700 $6,300.00 1700 $6,800.00
31503 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN B618 LINFT $22.00 2600 $57,200.00 2600 $57,200.00
31.503 [CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN 8524 LINFT $23.00
31618 [TRUNCATED DOMES SQFT $62.00 100 $6,200.00 100 $6,200.00
2563.601 [TRAFFIC CONTROL LUMP SUM $15,00000 i $15.000.00 1 $15,000.00
2564318 SIGN PANELS TYPE C SQFT $50.00 235 $11.750.00 235 $11,750.00
2565501 [EMERGENCY VEHICLE PREEMPTION SYSTEM LUMP SUM $7,000.00 T $7.000.00 i $7,00000
2565316, [TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAL SYSTEM SYSTEM $250,000.00 | $250,000.00 1 $230,000.00
2573501 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT LUMP SUM $1.000.00 $1.000.00 1 $1.000.00
2573.302 STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION EACH $275.00 $1.375.00 5 $1375.00
23573.502 [CULVERT END CONTROLS EACH $92.00 $92.00 1 $92.00
2573.503 SILT FENCE, TYPE MS TINFT $3.00 3370 $7,110.00 B0 $7.110.00
3573503 SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE COMPOST LINFT $3.00 2370 $7.110.00 3370 $7,110.00
2574507 |COMMON TOPSOIL BORROW CUYD 15200 150 $7,800.00 150 $7,800.00
2574508 FERTILIZER TYPE 3 POUND $1.00 160 $160.00 160 $160.00
7575504 EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS CATEGORY 3N SQ YD $1.50 1400 $2,100.00 1400 $2,100.00
7575 504 RAPID STABILIZATION METHOD 4 SQ YD $1.50 1400 $2,100.00 1400 $2,100.00
2575.50 SEEDING ACRE $330.00 1 $165.00 $165.00
2575.508 SEED MIXTURE 25-131 POURD $4.00 55 $220.00 55 $230.00
2575508 HYDRAULIC MULCH MATRIX POUND 3070 550 $385.00 550 $385.00
582,503 4" SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LINFI 2.00 3500 $7,000.00 3500 $7,000.00
582,503 4" BROKEN LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LN F 7.00 435 $870.00 435 $870.00
582503 4" DOUBLE SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LIN F] 3.00 755 $2,265.00 755 $2.265.00
3582518 [PAVEMENT MESSAGE PREFORM THERMOPLASTIC GROUND TN SQFT $30.00 315 $9.450.00 315 $9.450.00
[CONTINGENCY 15% $121,498.00 $108433.00 $13,065.00
ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION TOTAL S93L480.00 $831315.00 $100,165.00

Page 1 K:\014712-000\Q ity\Preliminary\Alt i il It 1 - Ectimate




CSAH 5 & EAST DUAL BOULEVARD IMPROVEMENTS: ALTERNATIVE NO. 2
Project Location: CITY OF ISANTI, MN
H'SB Project No.: 014712-000
Date: 17712020
. PROJECT TOTAL ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION MILL AND OVERLAY
tem Description Unit Unit Price
No.
Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
Quantity Cust Quantity Cost Quantity Cust
2021.501 MOBILIZATION LUMP SUM $60,000.00 1 $60.000.00 1 $60,000.00
2102.503 [PAVEMENT MARKING REMOVAL LINFT $2.00 930 $1,860.00 930 $1.860.00
2104.502 REMOVE SIGN EACH $35.00 2 $910.00 6 $910.00
2104.503 SAWING CONCRETE PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LIN FT 3.00 4 $200.00 40 $200.00
04.503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LINFT 2.00 1955 $3,910.00 55 $3,910.00
)4.503 REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER NFT $4.00 2970 $11,380.00 70 $11,880.00
04.518 REMOVE BITUMINOUS WALK QF1 1.00 1125 1,125.00 25 $1,125.00
)4.518 REMOVE CONCRETE WALK QF1 1.50 9400 $14,100.00 400 $14,100.00
)4.518 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT QFI 2.00 10320 $20,640.00 10320 $20,640.00
2106.507 EXCAVATION - COMMON CUYD $10.00 300 $5,000.00 300 $5,000.00
2106.507 EXCAVATION - SUBGRADE CUYD $14.00 2000 $28,000.00 2000 $28,000.00
2106.507 SELECT GRANULAR EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD $18.00 2000 $36.000.00 2000 $36,000.00
2106.507 COMMON EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD $10.00 300 $5,000.00 300 $5.000.00
2211.507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 CUYD $26.00 1300 $33.800.00 1300 $33,800.00
2232.504 MILL BITUMINQUS SURFACE (2.0") SQ YD $3.00 7800 $23.400.00 7800 $23,400.00
2301.504 [CONCRETE PAVEMENT 7.0* SQ YD $68.00
2360.509 'TYPE SP 9.5 NON WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3:B) TON $72.00 760 $54.720.00 760 $54,720.00
2360.509 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3.C) TON 376.00 1460 $110,960.00 600 $45.600.00 860 $65,360.00
2503.503 15" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS V LINFT $62.00 400 $24.800.00 400 $24.800.00
2503.503 18" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS ITT LINFT $86.50 150 $12.975.00 150 $12.975.00
2503.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER EACH $1,700.00 $3,400.00 $3,400.00
2503.602 CONNECT INTO EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURE EACH $1,900.00 2 $3,800.00 2 $3,800.00
506.502 CASTING ASSEMBLY EACH $850.00 11 $9,350.00 1 $9,350.00
506.502 ADJUST FRAME AND RING CASTING EACH $250.00 2 $500.00 2 $500.00
506.503 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE DESIGN 48-4020 LINFT 342000 45 $18,900.00 45 $18,900.00
2521518 4" CONCRETE WALK SQFT $5.00 13250 $66,250.00 13250 $66,250.00
2521.518 3" BITUMINOUS WALK SQFT $4.00
2531.503 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN B618 LINFT $22.00 4285 $94,270.00 4285 $94,270.00
2531.503 ICONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN 8524 LINFT $23.00
2531.618 [ TRUNCATED DOMES SQFT $62.00 100 $6,200.00 100 $6,200.00
2563.601 [ TRAFFIC CONTROL LUMP SUM $15,000.00 1 $15.000.00 1 $15.000.00
2564.518 SIGN PANELS TYPE C SQFT $50.00 160 $8,000.00 160 $8.000.00
2565.501 EMERGENCY VEHICLE PREEMPTION SYSTEM LUMP SUM $8,500.00 1 $8.500.00 1 $8,500.00
2565.516 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAL SYSTEM SYSTEM $300,000.00 1 $300,000.00 1 $300,000.00
STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT LUMP SUM $1.000.00 1 $1.000.00 ] $1.000.00
N INLET PROTECTION EACH $275.00 11 $3.025.00 11 $3.025.00
D CONTROLS EACH $92.00 1 $92.00 1 $92.00
. TYPE MS LINFT $3.00 3230 $9.650.00 3230 $9.650.00
SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE COMPOST LINFT $3.00 3230 $9.690.00 3230 $9.690.00
COMMON TOPSOIL BORROW CUYD $52.00 250 $13,000.00 250 $13,000.00
508 FERTILIZER TYPE 3 POUND $1.00 185 318500 185 $185.00
.504 EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS CATEGORY 3N 5Q YD $1.5 1800 $2,700.00 1800 $2,700.00
04 RAPID STABILIZATION METHOD 4 SQ YD $1.5¢ 1800 $2,700.00 1800 $2,700.00
.505 ACRE $330.00 1 3165.00 ¥ $165.00
.508 POUND $4.00 65 $260.00 65 $260.00
.508 HYDRAULIC MULCH MATRIX POUND 30.70 430 $301.00 430 $301.00
2582.503 4" SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND LIN F1 $2.00 2895 $5,790.00 2895 $5,790.00
2582.503 4" BROKEN LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LIN F1 $2.00 290 $580.00 290 $580.00
2582.503 4" DOUBLE SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LIN F1 $3.00 1385 $4,155.00 1385 $4,155.00
2582.518 PAVEMENT MESSAGE PREFORM THERMOPLASTIC GROUND IN SQFT $30.00 325 $15,750.00 525 $15,750.00
[CONTINGENCY 15% $157,880.00 $144,566.00 $13,314.00
ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $1,210,413.00 $1,108,339.00 $102,074.00

Page 1

K:\014712-000\Q

Alt 2 - Estimate

y\Prefiminary



P

Ui

OPINIO
.

M,

N OF PROBABLE COST

.

WSB Project: CSAH 5 & EAST DUAL BOULEVARD IMPROVEMENTS: ALTERNATIVE NO. 3
Project Location: CITY OF ISANTI, MN
WSB Project No.: 014712000
[Dore: 1782020
It PROJECT TOTAL ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION MILL AND OVERLAY
N"';“ Description Notes Untt Unit Price
Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
Quunﬂg Cost %nﬂty Cost Qmmtln' Cost
2021301 MOBILIZATION TOMPSUM | 360,000.00 1 $60,000.00 ] $60,000.00
2102503 |PAVEMENT MARKING REMOVAL TIN FT 5200 1330 $3,060.00 1530 $3.060.00
34.502 REMOVE SIGN EACH $35.00 12 $476.00 iz $42000
4 503 [SAWING CONCRELE PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTT) N FT $5.00 60 $300.00 60 $300.00
45 [SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LINFT 00 350 $900.00 450 $900.00
LIN FT $4.00 805 37,2200 1805 3722000
N BITUMINOUS WALK. 3QF] 00 610 $3,610.00 3610 $3,610.00
2104, CONCRETE WALK SQFT 50 570 $8,355.00 5570 $8,355.00
2104 BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SQFI 00 49800 $99,600.00 49800 $99.600.00
06, TGN - COMMON CUYI $10.00 1000 $10,000.00 1000 $10,000.00
06. ITON - SUBGRADE, CUYD $14.00 3000 $42,000.00 3000 $42,000.00
0. RANULAR EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD $18.00 3000 $54,000.00 3000 $54,000.00
06 EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD $10.00 500 5,000.00 500 $5,000.00
1307 [AGGREGATE. BASE (CV) CLASS 5 CUYD $26.00 1300 $39.000.00 1500 $39,00000
3232304 MILL BITUMINOUS SURFACE (3.0°) SQYD $3.00
2301 504 [CONCRETE PAVEMENT 7.0° SQYD $68.00 630 $H2.810.00 630 $42.840.00
2360509 [TYPE 5P 9.5 NON WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3.5) TON $72.00 815 358,680.00 315 $58.680.00
2360.309 [TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3.C) TON $76.00 625 $47,500.00 625 $47,500.00
503303 T5" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS V LINFT $62.00 00 $24,800.00 400 324,800.00
503.503 18" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS T LINFT 386,50 150 $12,675.00 150 $12,975.00
503,602 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER FACH $1,700.00 2 $3,40000 2 $3.400.00
303.602 [CONNECT INTO EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURE EACH $1,900.00
3506.302 [CASTING ASSEMBLY EACH $850.00 15 $12,750.00 s 31275000
3506.502 ADJUST FRAME AND RING CASTING EACH $350,00
2506 503 [CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE, DESIGN 48-4020 TINFT $420.00 &0 $2520000 50 $25.200.00
2521518 4" CONCRETE WALK SQIT $5.00 13000 $65,000.00 13000 $65,000.00
2521318 3* BITUMINOUS WALK SQFT $4.00 3650 $14.600.00 3650 $14,600.00
2531303 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN B618 LINFT $22.00 2000 SHH000 2000 $44,000.00
2531.503 [CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN $524 LINFT $23.00 1800 $41,460.00 1800 $41,400.00
2531618 TRUNCATED DOMES SQFT $62.00 65 $4.030.00 65 $4,030.00
3545302 CIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL 1 EACH $11,000.00 18 $198,000 00 18 $198,000.00
3363.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL TOMPSUM | $30.000.00 1 $30,000 60 ] $30,000.00
3364318 SIGN PANELS TVPE C SQFT $50.00 110 $5,50000 110 $5.500.00
2565301 [EMERGENCY VEHICLE PREEMPTION SYSTEM TUMP SUM $7,000.00
2565516 [TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAL SYSTEM SYSTEM $250,000.00
]
01 [STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT TUMP SUM $1,000.00 T $1,000.00 T $1.000.00
02 [STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION EACH s $1,375.00 5 $1,375.00
502 CULVERT END CONTROLS EACH T 392.00 1 3$92.00
03 SILT FENCE, TYPEMS LINFT $3.00 1830 $5,490.00 1830 $5,450.00
503 SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE COMPOST TINFT $3.00 1830 $5490.00 1830 $5,450.00
3574507 [CGMMON TOPSOIL BORROW CUYD 35200 200 $10,30000 200 $10,400.00
2574 508 [FERTILIZER TYPE 3 POUND $1.00 130 $130.00 130 $130.00
2575.504 [EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS CATEGORY 3N SQYD $1.50 210 315.00 210 $315.00
2575.504 [RAPID STABILIZATION METHOD 4 SQYD $1.50 210 31500 210 $315.00
2575 50 SEEDING ACRE $330.00 0 132.00 0 313200
2575.50 SEED MIXTURE 25-131 POUND $4.00 5 $180.00 45 $120.00
2575.508 HYDRAULIC MULCH MATRIX POUND $0.70 110 $777.00 10 $777.00
382308 [ SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN TINF] $2.00 1765 $3,53000 1765 $3,530.00
582503 * BROKEN LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LINF] 32.00 T $150.00 7S $15000
582,503 ~ DOUBLE SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND TN TINFI $3.00 225 $675.00 335 $675.00
382518 AVEMENT MESSAGE PREFORM THERMOPLASTIC GROUND IN SQFT $30.00 435 $13,050.00 435 $13,050.00
[CONTINGENCY 15% $151.087.00 $151,087.00
ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION TOTAL S1,158328.00 S1,158,326.00
Page 1 K014712-0000Q reliminary 3- Estimate




OPINION OF PROBABLE COS

'SB Project: CSAH 5 & EAST DUAL BOULEVARD IMPROVEMENTS: ALTERNATIVE NO. 4
|Project Location: CITY OF ISANTI, MN
H'SB Project No.: 014712-000
Date: 17872020
PROJECT TOTAL ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION MILL AND OVERLAY
Item
Description Unit Unit Price
No.
Estimuted Estimated Estimuted Estimated Estimated Estimated
(!IIIII“Q’ Cost Qulndg Cust qunnlig' Cost
2021.501 MOBILIZATION LUMP SUM $60,000.00 ! $60.000.00 1 $60,000.00
2102.503 PAVEMENT MARKING REMOVAL LINFT 3200 1135 $2,270.00 1135 $2.270.00
D4.502 REMOVE SIGN EACH $35.00 12 $420.00 12 $42000
04.503 SAWING CONCRETE PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH LIN FT $5.00 40 200.00 40 $200.00
04.503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LIN FT $2.00 860 $1,720.00 860 $1,72000
}4 REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER LINFT $4.00 305 $9,220.00 2305 $9,220.00
4. REMOVE BITUMINOUS WALK SQFI 1.00 410 $2,410.00 2410 $2.410.00
4. REMOVE CONCRETE WALK SQFI 1.50 560 $2.340.00 1560 $2,340.00
4. REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SQFI 2.00 47680 $95,360.00 47680 $95,360.00
2106.507 EXCAVATION - COMMON CUYD $10.00 125¢ $12,500.00 1250 $12,500.00
2106.507 EXCAVATION - SUBGRADE CUYD $14.00 400 $56,000.00 4000 $56,000.00
2106.507 SELECT GRANULAR EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD $18.00 40K $72,000.00 4000 $72,000.00
2106.507 COMMON EMBANKMENT (CV) CUYD $10.00 1500 $15.000.00 1300 $15,000.00
2211.507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 CUuYD $26.00 2000 $52,000.00 2000 $52,000.00
2232.504 MILL BITUMINOUS SURFACE (2.0%) SQYD $3.00 1100 $3,300.00 1100 $3.300.00
2301.504 CONCRETE PAVEMENT 7.0 SQYD $68.00 350 $23.800.00 350 $23 800.00
2360.509 TYPE SP 9.5 NON WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3:B) TON $72.00 1055 $75.960.00 1055 $75.960.00
2360.509 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3.C) TON $76.00 930 $69.920.00 805 $61,180.00 s $8,740.00
2503.503 15" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS V LINFT $62.00 500 $31.000.00 300 $31,000.00
503503 18" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS I LINFT $86.50 200 $17.300.00 200 $17,300.00
503.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER EACH $1.700.00 2 $3,100.00 2 $3,400.00
503 602 CONNECT INTO EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURE EACH $1,900.00
2506.502 CASTING ASSEMBLY EACH $3! 50.00 17 $14,450.00 17 $14,450.00
2506.502 ADJUST FRAME AND RING CASTING EACH $250.00
2506.503 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE DESIGN 48-4020 LINFT $420.00 68 $28,560.00 68 $28,560.00
2521.518 4" CONCRETE WALK SQFT $5.00 14800 $74,000.00 14800 $74,000.00
2521518 3" BITUMINOUS WALK SQFT $4.00
.503 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN B618 LINFT $22.00 2655 $58,410.00 2635 $58,410.00
.503 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DESIGN 5524 LIN FT $23.00 1620 $37,260.00 1620 $37,260.00
618  TRUNCATED DOMES SQFT $62.00 65 $4,030.00 65 $4,030.00
2545.502 LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL 1 EACH $11.,000.00 12 $132,000.00 12 $132,000.00
2563.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL, LUMP SUM $30.000.00 1 $30,000.00 ! $30,000.00
2564.518 |SIGN PANELS TYPE C SQFT $50.00 noe $5,500.00 no $5.500.00
2565.501 [EMERGENCY VEHICLE PREEMPTION SYSTEM LUMP SUM $7,000.00
2565.516 [TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAL SYSTEM SYSTEM $250,000.00
2573.50 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT LUMP SUM $1,000.00 ! $1.000.00 1 $1,000.00
2573.50. STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION EACH $275.00 1 $3,025.00 1 $3.025.00
2573.50. [CULVERT END CONTROLS EACH $92.00 1 $92.00 1 $92.00
2573.503 SILT FENCE, TYPE M8 LINFT $3.00 2250 $6,750.00 2250 $6.750.00
2573.303 SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE COMPOST LINFT $3.00 2250 $6,750.00 2250 $6.750.00
2574.507 [COMMON TOPSOIL BORROW CUYD $52.00 350 $18,200.00 330 $18.200.00
2574.508 FERTILIZER TYPE 3 POUND $1.00 160 $160.00 160 $160.00
2575.504 [EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS CATEGORY 3N SQYD $i.50 1300 $1,950.00 1300 $1,950.00
.504 [RAPID STABILIZATION METHOD 4 SQ YD $1.50 1300 $1,950.00 1300 $1,950.00
.505 SEEDING ACRE $330.00 0 132.00 0 $132.00
.508 SEED MIXTURE 25-151 POUND $4.00 55 $220.00 55 $220.00
. 508 HYDRAULIC MULCH MATRIX POUND $0.70 500 $350.00 300 $350.00
2582.503 4" SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LIN FT $2.00 2185 $4,370.00 2185 $4,370.00
2582.503 4" BROKEN LINE MULT[-COMPONENT GROUND IN LIN F1 $2.00 210 $420.00 210 $420.00
2582.503 4" DOUBLE SOLID LINE MULTI-COMPONENT GROUND IN LINFT $3.00 760 $2.280.00 60 $2,280.00
2582518 [PAVEMENT MESSAGE PREFORM THERMOPLASTIC GROUND IN SQFT $30.00 310 $15,300.00 510 $15,300.00
[CONTINGENCY 15% $157,992.00 $136,186.00 $1.806.00
ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION TOTAL S1,211,271.00 $1,197,425.00 $13,846.00

Page 1 K:\014712-000\Q ity\Preliminary i i It 4 - Estimate



APPENDIX F
SimTraffic/HCS Operations Results






9 ool 74 1 a3 v € v[iv]Iv]z € 9 [s]ss [ier] L | &3
-
o¢ z as v ¥ v{ iv]|v]|¥ 0 0 z F2 0 0 [8S] ¢,vsomia |3
) 0ot ] 5z [am| ¥ € v [ v|iv][v]o [ 9 [2€8 | ¥ |00L| 16 [EM] uolunupaiD g m..
06 32 aN g Zl v | o| o] 2 e [zz]e]|[e]| 8 |ze|anN °
21z | 9L ¥9 6¢C a3 g zl v | 8§ ] 0 |2 | ¢t |[ees| o [vBp | 6¥ | E3 )
Q
8L | 9% | @S| g | 1 v 8 AR AEREEREREREAEERERES uw_w "._mhm ) H
1se3 2 F
002 8 8l /8L | SO am a oL viig| v]| e || ofw|[ls]|o]| o]|am m
ananp | anand ananp | ananpd ananp | snand
abei0)s ey | sy abeiolg ey | sy abei0}s ey | aw so1 |Ae12a| sO1 | Aeled | ¥ L 1] ¥ L | 1 ieon| ¥ L] o
uonelo” 3
addy [ (yapsoes) (Uap2g) iddy i £y
win]-ybry ybnoayy wing-3a7 uopossia| uoeasddy Juawarol Juswanol S3WN|OA 1SE2104 o
49 SO7 49 SO7 £q sO1 Aq Aejeq Ie30L
f1aa)) BulsnanD Jwel] wWnwixey § abeisay uopdasIau|
SIOW INd T DA11euIR)|y-pling 6T0C ¥4 @I9EL
8l I 00l €2 z a3 v € v]v]v]e 3 9 [ev. |2z [ce.| v | 83
-
as v 0 v]|v]|v]o 0 0 0 0 0 0o [ as sHvSo®.Q |3
=
001 69 z [am| ¢ v [ v iv]v]o 0 6 | 16V | 6€ | ¥8E | 89 | @M | uomnupaid iz m.
85 Jx3 aN v 8 v |0 | O v |0z |oc]| 4 |ev] 2 [z ]| aN ®
628 | 991 65 iz a3 a Sl Vv |8 8| o |st|or|¥ez| o |i9](2 ] a3 )
[-]
6 | s 88| g | & 8 I | v | v |89 | s |0 |v |t |ev|oO[or]as um_g_m __._d_mo H
Ise3 s HY
00z [ vl 74} 89 am v 8 v]iv]v]eze 8 0 [ 266 | 28 Josc| 0 | am m
ananp) | anand anany) | ananD ananp | anand
abeiolg xew | ey abeio)g xew | any abeiols ey | ay so1 |Aeisq| so1 [Aete@ | ¥ | L [ 1 | ¥ L | 1 [0l ¥ L[ 9
uopeso] 3
wng-ybny ybnoayy wnj-3a7 4ddy (uapsss) (usApss) JUSWDAOWN JUSWAAONW 4ddy W
uonoasIAGU| yoeoaddy SaWnNjoA 1SE23J04
A9 SO1 A9 801 Aq sO1 Aq Kejaq 15901
(39a)) Butananp oyjel] wnuwixe ® aBeIaAY uopoasIRuf

SIOIN WV T a2A11euwsdly-pling 6T0¢C "€d 9[qel




691 9 69l 9 EE] v v v v v S v v 165 | v5 | e6v | v = ]
ey | Sb ier | sl b [ st [am ] G v 9 v v v v 9 s [ o8 [ e8 | ez [ w [ am 4 votun 3
UPUDBSHYSD | &
86 [ 86 [ 86 [ aN v v 17 v v € T S vlL | 8L oL ez | 8N
691 9 132 € EE] v v v v v v 188 e | v EE] ]
26 € as v 1 v L Syl | zob % as pAlg jeng
v v [ V] BEIRSHYSD | &
ovz 5 am v € v seL | v | ¥69 am
anenp | enenDy |_ ananp | snsnp ananp | anand
e021018[ "o | ey [PP2OS] e | sy [PPHOS| sepy | s so1 | Aejea | so1 |Aeag| ¥ 1 1 1oL [ o 1 Ll wopesoy m
wn-y6ny yBnasyy winy-yeq 1ddy | (uappas) (uappas) Juswanop 1ddy s
uoysasiaju] yoeosddy Juawarop Aq SO Aa Aeta o Sawnjop pajapoly
(323y) bulanand suyel] wnwixep @ sbesaay Aq SO Aq sO1 q Ae1eq 1Mol uogoIsIAU|
SJOWN INd € sAllewsal|y-piing 6T0C "84 3[qel
Tl z 2 2 a3 v z v 7 v 2z z 2 €6. | 1T | v89 | s8v EE] »
5z | ¢ ST | s 5| s [am| ¢ 7 ¥ v v v € S e [sis | ze [eov [ vv | am 4g vowin 3
3p21D B § HYSD
Ve I v [ [ 1 aN 7 v v v v v 9 S 73 o z ol aN
Tl z 19k z a3 v € v v € z v89 | ev EE] ]
29 0 29 o |8 | v ¢ v B v v [ B as PAlg [end 1
PEIWSHYSD | &
asl € 951 B am v € 17 v € B
ananp | snand anand | anand ananp | ananpd
5 B 6
soeiois| oo [ T [eeiais| S| T [ebmeis| ToC | 7 sO1 | Aejag | s01 |Aesa | ¥ 1 1 ¥ 1 1 S g
Jddy 1dd i Ey
wny-ybny yBnouyy wnpya (43pr035) (usppas) Juawanon v s
uoys3sIdu| yoseosddy JU3WAAOW Aq SO Aa Aeta o SawnjoA p3japop
(323)) Buranand suyes]l wnwixew ¥ abeiaay Aq SO1 Aq SO q Ae1eg 1=mol uonIIsIAUL

SIOIN INV € @Alleualjy-pling 6T0¢ "/d4 d|qel












iz | €l iz | e a3 v 9 v v v 9 9 2 ego [ oo [ w5 [ & a3 ]
ne | iz ne | 1z zie | 1z | am || s v 6 v v v 8 6 8 | zz6 | 26 | €82 | ¢ | @M g uowin 3
NPAID BSHVSD | &

z9 [ 29 b z9 L aN 7 2 v v [ v € 2 6zl | @8 €l sz | &N
iz | e Lle S 43 v S v v S 2 £65 ve | er a3 ]
() v as v s v 8 v v L 6 [ 991 | oib 9 | 8s PAlg |EnQ 1
BEIPGHYSD |

vsz | 1b am v S v v 2 S oe | & | e am

2nany | anend |_. anany | enanD ananp | enand
abelo)q XeN Yy abeioy Xen vy abeio)s xem e SO >n_00 S0 >N_0n_ | L a o L 1 [ei0l o L a wonest m
wnyybRy ybnosuyy wny-yo dddy [ (yanoas) (Yaa9s) Juawanow 1ddy 5
uonoasiay| yoeaiddy JuawaAoy Aq SO a Aelo o S3awn|oA p3ajapon
{323y) burananp swea] wnwixelw 7§ abeisay £q sO1 Aq sO1 q Ae1eq e0L uoyoasIay|
SIOIN INd € @Aneulaly-pling 6€0¢ "LT4 dlqel

69€ | o 6%€ | Ob a3 ¥ € v ¥ ¥ z € ¥ ovg | v2 | s | e a3 3
wz | bt W | kb Wz | B | 8m ¥ c 3 9 ¥ ¥ ¥ L ) s [ ses | e | &#v | s | 8m 4Q coten A
MPADVS HYSD | &

LE ¢ Pas b 8 o an k4 ¥ ¥ v A4 14 2 ¥ ] b= 4 Z o an
63g | ob 3 5 a3 ¥ S ¥ E7 S ¥ %8 st | & a3 3
zr 3 F-3 3 as v c ¥ ¥ ¥ [ 3 S @ | & ) 8s PAiE 12RG :
BE3 S HYS S 2

€62 ) €52 8 am ¥ ¥y ¥ ¥ v v wr | & | w2y am

Ny | SNDND N3 DB IR | TN
08101S| o | any |P0R03S amc u&c abestis| oo ¥<o SO1 |Aepg | sO1 |4epg| ¥ 1 1 u i 1 |moz| 1 1 Q
uoneao] 2
add 1 3
R P - V[ weapas) T (wawes) R o 3
10361 I g v ¥y % A9 SO} Aq feo@ KI0L S3UmiOA PIESPCR
199} BuonenD syuri UMwWEW B SBLIAAY Ag son Ag 501 [T

SION NV € AieUIBYY-p|iNg 6E0C "9T4 2(qel




K.3.

Memo for Council Action

(o
To: Mayor Johnson and Members of the City Council
From: Jenny Garvey - Parks, Recreation and Culture Manager
Date: October 6™, 2020
Subject: Resolution Approving a Special Event Application for Rum River BMX for MN
State Series Finals
Background

The City has received an application for the upcoming special event planned for the Rum River
BMX Association. The MN State Series Finals weekend is scheduled for October 23 -25% 2020.

Hours of the event are Friday October 23 from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m., Saturday October 24™
from 1:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. and Sunday October 25" from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Estimates the number of individuals in attendance is 1,000-2,000 per day.

Team canopies may be put up on the grass outside the arena (to the east and south), all
canopies must use weights to secure canopies, the Association will notify participants to not
use stakes to protect the irrigation lines.

The Association is planning for spectator parking to take place at the Indoor Arena and
within the Bluebird Park lots as overflow parking, along with the soccer field parking lot.
Daily event and camper parking will occur on the grass south of the Isanti Indoor Arena, per
the Special Event Paid Parking Agreement, and the fees for this event will be $5/day for cars
and trucks and $25/weekend for RVs.

Portable restroom facilities will be provided by the Association for the event, and the
organization is responsible for clean-up of the outside areas.

The standard public addressing system would be used throughout the event.

Association is not requesting that any roads be closed.

Attachments

Resolution 2020-XXX
Special Event Application
o Application Form
o Site Map
o Release and Indemnification Agreement



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

APPROVING A SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION FOR RUM RIVER BMX
MN STATE SERIES FINALS

WHEREAS, the Rum River BMX Association submitted a Special Event application requesting
approval to host the MN State Series Finals; and,

WHEREAS, the event is scheduled to take place on Friday October 23" from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.,
Saturday October 24™ from 1:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. and Sunday October 25" from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. at the
Isanti Indoor Arena located at 101 Isanti Parkway NW; and,

WHEREAS, the south and east sides of the Isanti Indoor Arena will be reserved for team canopies
and event activities;

WHEREAS, the canopy users must use weights and not stakes in the ground to secure canopies; and,
WHEREAS, the estimated number of people to be in attendance is 1,000-2,000 per day; and,
WHEREAS, daily event and camper parking will occur on the grass south of the Isanti Indoor Arena,

per the Special Event Paid Parking Agreement, and the fees for this event will be $5/day for cars and trucks
and $25/weekend for RVs; and,

WHEREAS, overflow parking will occur in the paved lots at Bluebird Park, and the Soccer field
parking lot, and there will be no fees for this use; and,

WHEREAS, the applicant is required to provide additional portable restroom facilities for the event,
in which the applicant will be contacting its current supplier to do so prior to the event; and,

WHEREAS, the applicant is required to follow all applicable governor orders and their COVID plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti,
Minnesota to approve the Special Event Permit request for the MN State Series Finals race,

AND FURTHERMORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti,
Minnesota that this Resolution is hereby the “Permit” for the above stated Special Event.

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 6™ day of October, 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk




































RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

DECLARING COST TO BE ASSESSED,
ORDERING PREPARATION OF PROPOSED ASSESSMENT, AND
ORDERING HEARING ON PROPOSED ASSESSMENT -
6" AVENUE SW REHABILITATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, a contract has been let for the 2020 6" Avenue SW Rehabilitation Project and
described herein the improvement of 6" Avenue SW, from the intersection of South Brookview Lane
SW to the intersection of Edgewood Street SW. Project work also included, but not assessed, includes
installation of a new watermain and sidewalk construction. The contract (bid) price for such
improvement is $538,044.14, and the expenses incurred or to be incurred in the making of such

improvement will amount to approximately $126,494.96 so that the total cost of the improvement
will be $664,539.10.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Isanti, Minnesota as follows:

1. The portion of the cost of such improvement to be paid by the city is hereby declared to

be $590,259.97 and the portion of the cost to be assessed against benefited property
owners is declared to be $74,279.13.

Assessments shall be payable in equal annual installments extending over a period of 10
years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the 15" day of May, 2021,

and shall bear interest at the rate of 1.71% percent per annum from the date of the adoption
of the assessment resolution.

The city clerk, with the assistance of the consulting city engineer, shall forthwith calculate
the proper amount to be specially assessed for such improvement against every assessable
lot, piece or parcel of land within the district affected, without regard to cash valuation, as

provided by law, and a copy of such proposed assessment shall be filed in the city office
for public inspection.

AND FUTHERMORE, NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council
of Isanti, Minnesota:

1.

The City Clerk hereby notifies that such proposed assessment has been completed and
filed in the city office for public inspection.

A hearing shall be held on the 4th day of November, 2020 in the city hall at 7:00 pm. to
pass upon such proposed assessment and at such time and place all persons owning



property affected by such improvement will be given an opportunity to be heard with
reference to such assessment.

The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause a notice of the hearing on the proposed
assessment to be published once in the official newspaper at least two weeks prior to the
hearing, and the total cost of the improvement shall be stated. The Clerk shall also cause
mailed notice to be given to the owner of each parcel described in the assessment roll not
less than two weeks prior to the hearing date.

The owner of any property so assessed may, at any time prior to certification of the
assessment to the county auditor, pay the whole of the assessment on such property, with
interest accrued to the date of payment, to the City of Isanti, except that no interest shall
be charged if the entire assessment is paid within 30 days from the adoption of the -
assessment. They may at any time thereafter, pay to the City of Isanti the entire amount
of the assessment remaining unpaid, with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in
which such payment is made. Such payment must be made before November 15 or
interest will be charged through December 31 of the succeeding year.

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 6th day of October 2020

Attest

Mayor Jeft Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



AP201001
City of isanti Check Register - Mayor/Council Approval Page: 1
Check Issue Dates: 9/14/2020 - 9/16/2020 Sep 16,2020 07:11AM
Report Criteria:
Report type: Summary
Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Check GL Account Amount
09/20 09/16/2020 54360 494 ALLINA HEALTH SYSTEM 101-20200 852.96
09/20 09/16/2020 54361 9 BERNICKS PEPSI-COLA 609-20200 1,011.88
09/20 09/16/2020 54362 368 BILLS QUALITY CLEANING 101-20200 521.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54363 1474 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 101-20200 561.10
09/20 09/16/2020 54364 1198 CENTER POINT ENERGY 601-20200 458.07
09/20 09/16/2020 54365 1822 CENTURYLINK BUSINESS SERVICES 101-20200 49.70
09/20 09/16/2020 54366 918 CRYSTAL SPRINGS ICE 609-20200 261.63
09/20 09/16/2020 54367 8 DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CC 609-20200 14,730.05
09/20 09/16/2020 54368 833 DIAMOND VOGEL PAINT 101-20200 663.16
09/20 09/16/2020 54369 55 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 609-20200 161.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54370 2480 INTECTURAL, INC. 101-20200 1,078.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54371 7 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUCR CO 609-20200 8,5697.57
09/20 09/16/2020 54372 2647 JOHNSON CONTROLS 920-20200 534.33
09/20 09/16/2020 54373 136 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES 101-20200 6,642.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54374 17 MCDONALD DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 9,633.62
09/20 09/16/2020 54375 616 MENARDS - CAMBRIDGE 101-20200 196.94
09/20 09/16/2020 54376 2953 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 108-20200 138.35
09/20 09/16/2020 54377 2116 MINUTEMAN PRESS 101-20200 1,994.36
09/20 09/16/2020 54378 176 MN DEPT OF REVENUE 101-20200 35,385.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54379 1845 MN DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 444-20200 1,359.15
09/20 09/16/2020 54380 2842 MN PEIP 861-20200 23,240.70
09/20 09/16/2020 54381 617 PAUSTIS & SONS 609-20200 412.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54382 2341 RED BULL DISTRIBUTION 609-20200 176.50
09/20 09/16/2020 54383 73 STAR 609-20200 219.65
09/20 09/16/2020 54384 554 STEVES TIRE INC 101-20200 127.80
09/20 09/16/2020 54385 2879 TACTICAL ADVANTAGE, LLC 101-20200 523.50
09/20 09/16/2020 54386 1354 TAPES PLUS ADVERTISING 609-20200 295.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54387 626 THE WINE COMPANY 609-20200 101.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54388 1740 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES 108-20200 273.98
09/20 09/16/2020 54389 1820 URBANS HARDWARE INC 101-20200 60.74
09/20 09/16/2020 54390 2524 US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 101-20200 63.00
09/20 09/16/2020 54391 2027 USINTERNET 603-20200 57.80
09/20 09/16/2020 54392 42 VIKING COCA-COLA BOTTLING CO 609-20200 257.30
09/20 09/16/2020 54393 4 WATSON CO INC 609-20200 3,141.48
09/20 09/16/2020 54394 1922 WEX BANK 609-20200 2,506.56
09/20 09/16/2020 54395 1129 ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC 603-20200 2,084.00

Grand Totals: 118,370.88

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



AP201002

City of Isanti

Check Register - Mayor/Council Approval
Check Issue Dates: 9/22/2020 - 9/23/2020

Page:

1

Sep 23,2020 11:34AM

Report Criteria:
Report type: Surmmary

Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

GL Penod Check Issue Date  Check Number

Vendor Number Payee Check GL Account Amount

09/20 09/23/2020 54399 127 ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP 411-20200 1,500.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54400 2689 ADVANCED POWER SERVICES INC 602-20200 835.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54401 1141 ASSURANT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 861-20200 583.23
09/20 09/23/2020 54402 53 BELLBOY CORPORATION 609-20200 6,694.97
09/20 09/23/2020 54403 9 BERNICKS PEPSI-COLA 609-20200 684.80
09/20 09/23/2020 54404 1500 BOLTON & MENK INC 601-20200 15,712.95
09/20 09/23/2020 54405 2221 C &L DISTRIBUTING 609-20200 392.45
09/20 08/23/2020 54406 1474 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 101-20200 39.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54407 1815 CENTURYLINK 609-20200 887.44
09/20 09/23/2020 54408 2751 CMS MONITORING 101-20200 60.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54409 918 CRYSTAL SPRINGS ICE 609-20200 263.52
09/20 09/23/2020 54410 8 DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 18,150.52
09/20 09/23/2020 54411 2478 EAST CENTRAL ENERGY 101-20200 42.85
09/20 09/23/2020 54412 55 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 609-20200 161.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54413 16 ELECTRO WATCHMAN INC 609-20200 272.53
09/20 09/23/2020 54414 2933 FALCON NATIONAL BANK 101-20200 3,239.22
09/20 09/23/2020 54415 1682 FERGUSON WATERWORKS 601-20200 29.75
09/20 09/23/2020 54416 2028 FURTHER 101-20200 31.40
09/20 09/23/2020 54417 1009 GAMETIME 101-20200 1,990.76
09/20 09/23/2020 54418 160 HAWKINS INC 601-20200 1,829.72
09/20 09/23/2020 54419 2209 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS, INC 101-20200 51.58
09/20 09/23/2020 54420 114 ISANTI COUNTY RECORDER 505-20200 46.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54421 1563 ISANTI ELECTRIC INC 101-20200 1,072.67
09/20 09/23/2020 54422 113 ISANT! TIRE & AUTO CARE INC 101-20200 20.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54423 7 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR CO 609-20200 13,459.89
09/20 09/23/2020 54424 5 KAWALEK TRUCKING 603-20200 459,20
09/20 09/23/2020 54425 2345 LARSEN DIRT WORKS, LLC 101-20200 5,500.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54426 17 MCDONALD DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 7.469.92
09/20 09/23/2020 54427 1536 MINNESOTA DEED 219-20200 833.33
09/20 09/23/2020 54428 2080 MVTL LABORATORIES INC 602-20200 147.69
09/20 09/23/2020 54429 2018 NORTH FOLK WINERY 609-20200 348.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54430 2553 O'REILLY 101-20200 37.14
09/20 09/23/2020 54431 44 PHILLUPS WINE & SPIRITS INC 609-20200 14,791.89
09/20 09/23/2020 54432 2954 SAVVIK BUYING GROUP 101-20200 4,604.42
09/20 09/23/2020 54433 808 SHERMIK TREE FARMS 101-20200 600.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54434 2396 SOUTHERN GLAZERS OF MN 609-20200 14,837.69
09/20 09/23/2020 54435 1442 ST. LOUIS MRO INC 101-20200 45.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54436 1361 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 609-20200 803.87
09/20 09/23/2020 54437 97 TOTAL CONTROL SYSTEMS INC 602-20200 8,715.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54438 42 VIKING COCA-COLA BOTTLING CO 609-20200 141.15
09/20 09/23/2020 54439 1286 VINOCOPIA INC 609-20200 273.00
09/20 09/23/2020 54440 4 WATSON COINC 609-20200 1,709.56
09/20 09/23/2020 54441 2955 WELFRING, JEREMY 101-20200 5.88

Grand Totals: 126,373.99

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



AP201003

City of Isanti

Check Register - Mayor/Councit Approval
Check Issue Dates: 9/28/2020 - 9/30/2020

Page:

1

Sep 30, 2020 10:50AM

Report Criteria:

Report type: Summary

Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment”

GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number

Vendor Number Payee Check GL Account Amount
09/20 09/30/2020 54442 1503 7-UP BOTTLING 609-20200 209.90
09/20 09/30/2020 54443 1898 ABSOLUTE PORTABLE RESTROOMS 104-20200 375.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54444 2873 ADAPCO, LLC 101-20200 577.65
09/20 09/30/2020 54445 953 ALL AMERICAN TITLE CO,INC. 601-20200 94.41
09/20 09/30/2020 54448 2582 ARTS & SCIENCE ACADEMY 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54447 2975 ASCENSION ROOFING & SIDING 101-20200 80.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54448 9 BERNICKS PEPSI-COLA 609-20200 896.74
09/20 09/30/2020 54449 2020 BOYLE, EUGENE 101-20200 2,942.40
09/20 09/30/2020 54450 2319 BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE 609-20200 18,190.43
09/20 09/30/2020 54451 2956 CAMBRIDGE ISANTI ICE ARENA CORP 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54452 1474 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 101-20200 7.590.77
09/20 09/30/2020 54453 120 CONNEXUS ENERGY 101-20200 18,815.80
09/20 09/30/2020 54454 918 CRYSTAL SPRINGS ICE 609-20200 212.76
09/20 09/30/2020 54455 8 DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 23,062.28
09/20 09/30/2020 54456 8 DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 16.80
09/20 09/30/2020 54457 2720 DEFIANT DISTRIBUTCRS 609-20200 482.87
09/20 09/30/2020 54458 1941 DELTA DENTAL 861-20200 3,006.20
09/20 09/30/2020 54459 2957 DISRUD, BOBBI 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54460 2973 EBERHARDT, DAVID & SUSAN 601-20200 83.94
09/20 09/30/2020 54461 2904 EDGEWATER TITLE GROUP 601-20200 74.30
09/20 09/30/2020 54462 15619 EVER CAT FUELS, LLC 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54463 385 FEDERATED CO-OPS INC 602-20200 210.86
09/20 09/30/2020 54464 2972 FRITZ, NEVIN 601-20200 12.16
09/20 09/30/2020 54465 2830 GDO LAW 101-20200 4,083.33
09/20 09/30/2020 54466 739 HACH COMPANY 601-20200 819.31
09/20 09/30/2020 54467 2970 HANNAM, JAMES & RUTH 601-20200 92.74
09/20 09/30/2020 54468 2958 HOCKERT SALES, INC. 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54469 2967 IDLE HANDS TATTOO 101-20200 3,892.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54470 2209 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS, INC 101-20200 91.19
09/20 09/30/2020 54471 2959 |ISANTI BARBER SHOP 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54472 252 ISANTI REDBIRDS 104-20200 48.55
09/20 09/30/2020 54473 7 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR CO 609-20200 8,304.08
09/20 09/30/2020 54474 5 KAWALEK TRUCKING 609-20200 237.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54475 1170 LAND TITLE INC 601-20200 77.88
09/20 09/30/2020 54476 2974 LANGERMANN, MICHAEL & PATRICIA 601-20200 25.59
09/20 09/30/2020 54477 2961 LONGLEY, SHERRY 101-20200 3,387.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54478 17 MCDONALD DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 14,496.75
09/20 09/30/2020 54479 616 MENARDS - CAMBRIDGE 101-20200 31.43
09/20 09/30/2020 54480 870 M-R SIGN COINC 101-20200 543.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54481 2080 MVTL LABORATORIES INC 602-20200 130.96
09/20 09/30/2020 54482 2960 NORTHERN PAWN, INC. 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54483 617 PAUSTIS & SONS 609-20200 2,763.75
09/20 09/30/2020 54484 44 PHILLIPS WINE & SPIRITS INC 609-20200 3,548.09
09/20 09/30/2020 54485 12 POSTMASTER 603-20200 240.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54486 2130 PROGRESSIVE BUILDERS 601-20200 98.89
09/20 09/30/2020 54487 2969 PUTMAN, JOHN 601-20200 2212
09/20 09/30/2020 54488 2827 RATWIK, ROSZAK & MALONEY, P.A, 101-20200 3,649.12
09/20 09/30/2020 54489 1013 RENDEZVOUS COFFEE SHOP 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54490 2625 RESULTS TITLE 601-20200 36.09
09/20 09/30/2020 54491 1373 RUM RIVER BMX ASSOCIATION 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54492 2968 RUM RIVER MALLARDS 101-20200 4,098.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54493 2963 SCHEID, RACHEL A. 101-20200 1,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54494 2156 SUMMIT COMPANIES 101-20200 8.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



City of Isanti

Check Register - Mayor/Council Approval
Check Issue Dates: 9/28/2020 - 9/30/2020

Page:

2

Sep 30, 2020 10:50AM

GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number

Vendor Number

Payee Check GL Account Amount

09/20 09/30/2020 54495 2793 TEAM LABORATORY CHEMICAL, LLC 602-20200 818.50
09/20 09/30/2020 54496 1290 THE AMBLE GROUP 602-20200 314.96
09/20 09/30/2020 54497 2962 THUNDER BROTHERS BREWERY, INC. 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54498 2964 TRANS MISSISSIPPI BIOLOGICAL SUPPLY INC 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54499 42 VIKING COCA-COLA BOTTLING CO 609-20200 324,95
09/20 09/30/2020 54500 2965 VILLAGE HAIR PARLOR 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54501 4 WATSON COINC 609-20200 1,504.79
09/20 09/30/2020 54502 2966 WILLOW BRIDGE, INC. 101-20200 5,000.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54503 780 WINE MERCHANTS 609-20200 88.00
09/20 09/30/2020 54504 2971 WINTERS, DEAN & LAURI 601-20200 8.27

Grand Totals: 196,719.61

Dated:

Mayor:

City Council:

City Recorder:

Report Criteria:

Report type: Summary

Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



City of Isanti

Gross Payroll | 87,835.54

Social Security & Medicare | 5,002.40

Public Employees Retirement 9,031.47

Total City Expense 101,869.41
Pay Date 9/18/2020

Pay Period 19 (8/30-9/12/20)



City of Isanti

Gross Payroll 94,532.59

Social Security & Medicare 5,178.91

Public Employees Retirement 9,446.86

Total City Expense 109,158.36
Pay Date 10/2/2020

Pay Period 20 (9/13-9/26/20)



City of Isanti

Gross Payroll 7,994.25

Social Security & Medicare 611.57

Total City Expense 8,605.82
Pay Date 9/30/2020

Pay Period:  Q3CCPay20 (7/1-9/30/20)




L.2.

RESOLUTION 2020-XXX
AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING A REGIONAL SAFETY GROUP

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59 authorizes governmental units by agreement
of their governing bodies to jointly or cooperatively exercise any power common to them; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have a duty to create a safe workplace for their employees, officials
and volunteers; and,

WHEREAS, the Isanti City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City to create a
Regional Safety Group (“RSG”) formed by agreements from other nearby cities/entities; and,

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to create a safety group that is innovative and different from a
traditional safety and health committee pursuant to Minnesota Rule 5208.0070; and,

WHEREAS, the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT) has developed the
Regional Safety Group Initiative to facilitate safety training for cities/entities; and,

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the Parties believe it is in the best interests of the Parties

to cooperatively promote safety and health in the workplace by participating in the Regional Safety
Group Initiative; and,

WHEREAS, the Establishing Agreement allows the City of Isanti to begin a new RSG upon
adoption of a resolution agreeing to all terms of the Establishing Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, §471.59, authorizes the Parties by agreement of their
governing bodies to jointly or cooperatively exercise any power common to them.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants made herein, the undersigned Parties
agree as follows:

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to promote workplace safety and health through the
sharing of ideas and knowledge among the Parties and by holding regular joint safety and health
training, educational programs, and meetings.

2. Name. The Parties hereby establish a safety group to be known as the CIMM Regional Safety
Group (the “RSG”). '

3. Membership.

A. LMCIT Members. All member cities/entities of the RSG are members in LMCIT’s workers’
compensation program.

B. Initial Members. The initial member cities/entities of the RSG shall be the undersigned Parties
executing this Agreement upon the approval of their governing bodies.

C. New Members. A new member city/entity, that is a member of LMCIT’s workers’
compensation program, may be added to the RSG upon approval of a majority of the current
members, as evidenced by a vote of the group members. Each member city/entity of the RSG



shall be entitled to one vote. Following the approval by the RSG, membership in the RSG is
effective upon approval and execution of this Agreement, by a prospective member’s
governing body and its authorized representatives.

Termination of Membership. Any member city/entity may terminate its membership in the
RSG upon written notification indicating its intent to withdraw not less than 90 days prior to
the end of a current year. Terms will be on an annual calendar basis. Termination takes effect
at the end of a current calendar year. A copy of the written termination notice must be sent to
the safety coordinator of each member city/entity and to Kris LeRoy, LMCIT Program
Manager, or other staff person as designated by LMCIT. Any terminated member shall remain
responsible for its share of any costs incurred prior to the effective date of termination. A
member city/entity shall also be terminated from the RSG if it is no longer a member of
LMCIT’s workers’ compensation program.

4. Officers and Bylaws: The RSG may adopt bylaws or other rules governing the group that are not

inconsistent with this Agreement. The RSG and its officers are not authorized to do any of the
following: (a) to receive and expend funds; (b) to enter contracts; (c) to hire employees; (4) to

purchase or otherwise acquire and hold real or personal property; or (5) to bring a lawsuit in the
name of the RSG.

5. LMCIT Sponsored Training/Meetings. LMCIT offers the RSG safety training/meetings.

A.

Number of Training/Meeting Sessions. The RSG is entitled to twelve (12) training sessions per
calendar year with a maximum of 1 per month and a minimum of 1 every-other month. Each
training session will be at a site to be determined by the RSG. The date of each training session
shall coordinate with the designated training representative.

LMCIT Cost. LMCIT will pay one-half of the cost of each training session up to the maximum
of twelve (12) sessions per calendar year. LMCIT will not reimburse members for travel,
meals, or other charges.

. Member Cost. The remaining cost of each training session shall be paid in equal proportions

by each RSG member to LMCIT.* Each member city/entity agrees to pay its share of training
costs after receiving an invoice from LMCIT. No member shall be responsible for the unpaid
costs of another member. Each member is responsible for its cost even if it does not have a
representative attend the training session.

Program Changes. RSG members acknowledge that LMCIT may, at any time, change its
obligations to RSG members. Any changes made in the RSG program will be communicated
to RSG members within thirty (30) days of the change.

6. Education and Training.

A. Online Education and Training. LMCIT has established an interactive web-based training

program in cooperation with FirstNet Learning. RSG members and their employees, officers,
and volunteers are entitled to free access to this online training.

Safety Data Sheet Management service. LMCIT has established an interactive web-based
service in cooperation with SDS Access, powered by Damarco Solutions, LLC. RSG members

and their employees are entitled to free access to this program to manage their cities safety data
sheets.




C. Other Education and Training. An RSG may hold other training and educational sessions or
meetings as determined by the group at the members’ expense. Approval from LMCIT is not
needed for training or meetings for which no LMCIT subsidy is requested.

D. Value Added Time. Each member city will utilize the safety trainer on an alternating basis with
each of the members within the RSG. The member will work directly with or instruct the
trainer on city-specific needs or records that require reviewing. The subject of this time will be
determined by the city in coordination with the trainer.

7. Safety Committee Meetings. As a part of any training session, the members may discuss any
matters that would typically be discussed in a “joint labor-management safety and health
committee” meeting under Minnesota Statutes, Section 182.676 and take any action authorized
under Minnesota Rules, Chapter 5208. LMCIT requires each RSG to hold a joint Safety
Committee Meeting every-other-month at a minimum.

8. General Provisions.

A. Modification. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, altered, or rescinded except
by a vote of the governing body of a majority of all members. Approved modifications take
effect thirty (30) days after the date of approval by the last member approving the modification.

B. Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective after approval by the governing body of the

last initial member to approve this Agreement and execution by that member’s authorized
representatives.

C. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the
laws of the State of Minnesota.

D. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be
an original, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

E. Savings Clause. If any court finds any provision of this Agreement to be contrary to law or
invalid, the remainder of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the Parties, by action of their respective

governing bodies, caused this Agreement to be approved by the City of Isanti Council this 6" day of
October 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



L.3.

RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

OFFERING THE POSITION OF PART-TIME LIQUOR STORE CLERK TO
MEGHAN GLASSEL

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Isanti is required to approve all new
employees; and,

WHEREAS, the staff was directed to advertise and accept applications to fill a
Liquor Store Part-Time Clerk position; and,

WHEREAS, Meghan Glassel was selected as the most qualified candidate for
the open Part-Time Liquor Store Clerk position. Offers are contingent on successfully
passing a background check and reference check. If any of the mentioned contingencies
are not met, the offer can and will be rescinded;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the
City of Isanti, Minnesota, as follows:

. That Human Resources is hereby directed to offer the Part-Time Liquor Store Clerk

position to Meghan Glassel for the City of Isanti and that she shall be eligible to start in
that position on or after October 6, 2020.

. This position is part time and not eligible for benefits.
. That Meghan Glassel shall start at Step 1 of the Wage Scale at $11.89 per hour.
. That Human Resources is directed to complete all required documentation for the

completion of the employment offer.

. That Human Resources is directed to forward an executed copy of this resolution to the

employee and place a copy in the employee’s personnel file for future reference.

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 6™ day of October
2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



L.4.

ACCEPTING PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURE BOARD MEMBER BRIAN
THUM’S RESIGNATION

RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

WHEREAS, Brian Thum was appointed by the City Council to serve as a member of the
Parks, Recreation and Culture Board for a term that expires on December 31, 2020; and,

WHEREAS, Brian Thum has provided notice of resignation as a member of the Parks,
Recreation and Culture Board effective September 15, 2020;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of

Isanti, Minnesota that Brian Thum’s resignation as a member of the Parks, Recreation and Culture
Board is hereby approved and staff is authorized to post the Board vacancy.

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 6™ day of October 2020

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX L L 5 ®

ACCEPTING PART-TIME LIQUOR STORE CLERK TERMINATION FOR
ELIZABETH KERR

WHEREAS, part-time Liquor Store‘CIerk, Elizabeth Kerr was unable to meet the minimum
requirements of the position and asked to be taken off the schedule; and,

WHEREAS, Elizabeth Kerr was directed on August 18, 2020 to contact Human Resources
or the Liquor Store Manager to discuss a work schedule; and,

WHEREAS, Elizabeth Kerr has made no contacted the Liquor Store Manager or Human
Resources since August 18, 2020; and,

WHEREAS, Elizabeth Kerr is being terminated from employment effective October 6, 2020;
and,

WHEREAS, Elizabeth Kerr is not leaving employment in good standing;
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Isanti, Minnesota, to hereby approve as follows:
1. That the resignation of Elizabeth Kerr is hereby accepted effective October 6, 2020.
2. That Human Resources/City Clerk and Liquor Store Manager are hereby directed to

fill the position.

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 6™ day of October 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



L.6.

A Community For Generations.

Isanti

MEMO for CITY COUNCIL
To: Mayor Johnson and Members of the City Council
From: Matt Sylvester, Public Services Director
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Resolution 2020-XXX Snow Plowing Policy

Background:

Every year the snow plowing policy is reviewed by Committee of the Whole and brought to City Council. Staff has
reviewed the policy and is recommending the following changes:

Article II. Procedures
K. Sidewalk Routes to Schools
Whiskey Road - Heritage Blvd to Isanti Parkway West- to read
Whiskey Road - Heritage Blvd to the Villages on the Rum Association.

At that point it is the Villages on the Rum Associations sidewalk and their responsibility to clear of snow and ice to
[santi Parkway.

Article V. Administration
A. Council Review

Staff will review the Snow Plowing Policy and Operational Guidelines prior to the next year’s snow season
and make any recommendations for amendments to the City Council.

Action:
Staff is requesting City Council action on this item.

Attachment:
1. Resolution 2020-XXX Snow Plowing Policy



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

APPROVING SNOW PLOWING POLICY AND OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES

PERSONNEL

All Department of Public Works personnel shall be available for all snow plowing
operations, unless on approved leave or unable to respond due to a medical condition.

PROCEDURES
A. Alert and Call Qut

During normal working hours, the Public Services Director or designee shall be
responsible for monitoring street and weather conditions and initiation of snow and
ice control procedures.

After hours, on weekends, and during holidays the Police Department shall notify
the Public Works On-Call or designee when snow and ice conditions warrant crew
alert. Snowplows will not be sent out in situations that may be hazardous due to
severely restricted visibility.

B. Salting and Sanding

The City shall consider in order the following factors when establishing application
rates and locations for application of salt and/or sand. The City shall use salt as the
primary treatment. Sand may be used if there is a traction issue or if weather
conditions deem it effective either combined with salt or as a separate treatment.

1) Safety of the Motoring Public
2) Environmental impact of salt usage
3) Cost

Salt or sand shall be applied to the street surface in such quantities so as to provide a
level of skid resistance that is consistent with standards normally experienced on city
streets throughout the State of Minnesota. It is recognized that a bare pavement
policy is not possible at all times during winter.

Streets shall be spot salted (or sanded) to provide skid resistance and traction
consistent with area standards in accordance with the following priorities:

1) All controlled intersections along Main Street, Heritage Blvd, County Road 23
and all curves.

2) School zones

3) Commercial and industrial streets

4) Residential - blanket sanding of general snow pack on residential streets will not
be done.

5) Inrare instances, when ice accumulation renders the streets unsafe to drive, the
Public Services Director may authorize blanket sanding of city streets to restore
vehicle traction.

C. Snow Plowing



The City will plow all storms of over 2 inches. During the season, snowfall of less
than 2 inches may be removed depending on road conditions. Snow plowing shall
normally begin when accumulation reaches a point where functional traffic flow is
inhibited. Typical plow start time is 3:00 a.m. Plowing may start earlier in the prior
evening, or delayed after 3:00 a.m., or may start during the daytime if conditions
warrant. Plowing shall begin as close as practicable to the time snowfall ceases and
will continue as visibility and operator safety permit. Work periods shall not exceed
safe limits that operators can continue without rest.

Snow removal operations shall proceed as rapidly as possible in accordance with the
following priorities:

1) Fire Hall Access Area

2) Police Department Access Area

3) Snow Emergency Routes - These routes (listed in this resolution) are typically
first plowed. In extreme snowfalls, these routes shall be plowed to maintain the
driving lanes in a passable condition until normal snow plowing activities
resume.

4) 2” or more snow event, Downtown sidewalks from the Railroad Tracks on the
east and traveling west to the intersection of Main and 2™ Avenue.

5) Sidewalk Routes to Schools —Primary sidewalks listed in this resolution.

6) Residential Streets

7) City Downtown Parking Lot, City Hall Parking lot and Isanti Community Center

Lot

8) Municipal Liquor Store Parking Lot

9) Alleys

10) Eagle Park Parking Lot

11) Isanti Indoor Arena

12) All Other Sidewalks — Secondary sidewalks (except exempt sidewalks)

13) River Bluff Preserve and Bluebird Park Parking Lots

14) Ice Skating Rink

For a storm of roughly 6 to 10 inches, it shall be the goal of the City to have all
streets plowed curb-to-curb within 12 hours after snowfall stops. Storms of larger
magnitude or extremely wet snow will take longer depending on severity. Extreme
snowfalls may warrant the opening of two lanes in the middle of the street initially
with full width plowing to follow at a later time.

It shall be the policy of the City that the opening of driveways will not be the
responsibility of the City. Property owners shall be responsible for clearing
driveways, and walkways. For a 2”or more snow event, the City shall clean all
sidewalks and trails that provide direct access to the Primary, Intermediate and
Middle Schools.

Snow Hauling

Snow may be hauled from streets where snow accumulation has created limited
visibility near intersections. Snow may be hauled away in areas, such as cul-de-sacs,



where there is limited space to wing back snow to accommodate for more snow
accumulation. Snow will be hauled from the following streets:

1) Main Street between 3rd Avenue and Elim Lane.

Late spring and early fall snowfalls may be left on roadways if melting is determined
to be imminent or if substantial damage will be caused to the pavement structure.
Clearing of intersection snow banks will be accomplished when needed on collector
streets and near schools.

Snow hauling could begin as early as 3:00 a.m. or 1 hour following the beginning of
snow removal operations. Hauling will continue for as many nights as is necessary.
Snow pickup shall be accomplished using such personnel, equipment and methods
appropriate to maintaining a reasonable and safe passage of vehicles and pedestrians
at all times. Traffic may be restricted by the Police Chief or his designee as
emergency conditions may dictate.

Snow Plowing Alleys

Alleys will be opened in the aforementioned priority to provide functional traffic
movement.

Snow Plowing Cul-de-Sacs

During snow events, the snowplow may complete only a portion of the cul-de-sacs
during the first pass. The major portion of the cul-de-sacs shall be plowed during
the usual time guidelines for snowplowing but specialized equipment will return for
further clearing. Main city streets are cleared first with large snowplows before the
smaller equipment begins clearing cul-de-sacs. There will be an effort made to
distribute the snow evenly as the snowplow clears snow.

Wingbacks

During planned City-wide wingbacks, resident notification will be made on the City
Website and by News Blasts. The Public Services Director, Designee or route driver
will determine that areas may need wingbacks more often due to drifting snow or
other conditions at the time, in these instances notice may not be given.

The Public Works Department will try to minimize impact to driveways and
sidewalks but some snow removal may be required by the homeowner.

Complaints

Complaints concerning snow and ice removal will be handled in the following
manner:

1) All complaints shall be referred to the Public Services Director or designee.

2) Slippery Street and sidewalk complaints shall be listed and given to Public
Works for investigation and possible action.

3) All other complaints shall be given to Administration for investigation and
possible action.

Property Damage




It is recognized by the City that on occasion private property is damaged during
snow and ice control operations. Where this happens, it shall be the policy of the
City to handle damages in the following manner:

1y

2)

3)
4)

S)

Mailboxes — Where mailboxes are placed adjacent to the street it shall be the
policy of the City that snow shall be plowed to the curb to allow for passage
of traffic and mail delivery. It shall be the responsibility of the property
owner to keep piled snow away from mailboxes so mail can be delivered.

Where damage to the mailbox occurs, such damage shall be investigated by
the Public Services Director or Designee. If it is determined that the weight
of the snow movement caused the damage, the City will not assume
responsibility for repair of the mailbox. Per USPS guidelines, mailboxes, as
well as any accessory paper boxes, must be mounted at a minimum height of
41 inches above the street level to reduce the possibility of damage during
winter snowplowing operations. USPS guidelines also state the post be
installed 6-8 inches behind the grass/concrete curb edge and the front of the
mailbox should be installed behind the back edge of the concrete curb. If the
mailbox was built according to these USPS guidelines or as directed by the
Post Master, and was struck directly by the plow, the City will repair or
replace the mailbox in kind, not to exceed $100.00.

Boulevard Damage — The City will repair physical damage to boulevard
areas and may replace sod in extreme cases as determined by the Public
Services Director. Typical repairs will be with dirt and seed. The City will
not repair winter kill or salt damaged lawn areas. The City will not replace
or repair sprinkler/ irrigation systems, landscaping or other structures in the
boulevard or right-of-way area.

Curbs — Concrete curbs will not be replaced unless the curb back is broken.

Driveway Ramps — Damage caused to driveway ramps or fillets where
mountable curb is in place will not be repaired by the City unless authorized
by the Public Services Director.

Garbage Receptacles — Garbage or recycling receptacles are not to be

placed in the street section or beyond the grass/concrete curb edge.
Receptacles are also not to be placed on the sidewalk. The City is not
responsible for damage of receptacles or clean-up of waste.



Snow Emergency Routes

The following routes are designated as Snow Emergency Routes and shall be
marked by signage:

Cajima Street - T.H. 65 to 8th Ave NE

8" Ave NE - Cajima Street to Heritage Blvd

8" Ave SE Boulevard - Heritage Blvd to CSAH 55

Main Street East - Railroad Tracks to T.H. 65

Dahlin Avenue - Broadway to Heritage Blvd

Main Street West - Whiskey Road to Railroad Tracks

First Avenue NW. - Main Street to Heritage Blvd
Centennial Drive - Oakwood Street to Heritage Blvd
Oakwood Street - Whiskey Road to Centennial Drive
Whiskey Road - Heritage Blvd to Isanti Parkway West
Hillock Street NW - Whiskey Road to 11th Avenue NW
11th Avenue NW - Hillock Street NW to Blossom Boulevard
Blossom Boulevard - 11th Avenue NW to Isanti Parkway West
Isanti Parkway West - Blossom Boulevard to 3rd Avenue N.
3rd Avenue N - Heritage Blvd to Isanti Parkway

Isanti Parkway East - 3rd Avenue N to East Dual Boulevard
East Dual Boulevard - Heritage Blvd to Cajima

Cajima Street - East Dual Blvd. to T.H. 65

Railroad Avenue - Main St to South Passage

Palomino Road - Railroad Avenue to T.H. 65

Townsedge Road - Railroad Avenue to T.H. 65

South Passage - Railroad Avenue to Whiskey Rd

Sixth Avenue SW - South Passage to S Brookview Lane
Dogwood Street SW - Whiskey Rd to 3rd Avenue SW
South Passage - Whiskey Rd to Rum River Drive SW

Rum River Drive SW - South Passage to Birch Street SW
Birch Street SW - Rum River Drive SW to Whiskey Rd

Sidewalk Routes to Schools

Broadway Street - Railroad Avenue to Candy Avenue



Dahlin Avenue - Broadway Street to Main Street

Main Street West - Whiskey Rd to Dahlin Avenue

Oakwood Street - Whiskey Rd to Centennial Drive

Heritage Blvd - Whiskey Rd to 65

First Avenue N - Main Street to Heritage Blvd

Second Avenue N - Main Street to Heritage Blvd

Third Avenue N - Main Street to Heritage Blvd

Fourth Avenue N - Main Street to Heritage Blvd

Fifth Avenue N - Main Street to Heritage Blvd

Fifth Avenue S — Main Street to S Brookview Lane SW_

Whiskey Road - South Passage to Heritage Blvd

Whiskey Road - Heritage Blvd to the Villages on the Rum Association
Wendover Street NW - Whiskey Road to Rum River Drive NW
Rum River Drive NW - Wendover Street NW to Hillock Street NW
Eleventh Ave — Winsome Way to Wendover St NW

Nemo — Broadway St SE to Main St E

Isanti Parkway NW — 3 Ave NW to 701 Isanti Parkway NW

First Ave NW — Broadway St to Heritage Blvd

8" Ave SE — Marion St SE to Heritage

9" Ave SE ~ Marion St SE to 8" Ave SE

Marion St SE — 8" Ave SE to 9" Ave SE
7" Ave NE — North of Cajima Street

III. POST PLOWING OPERATIONS

Once plowing is completed from curb to curb, post plowing operations will begin in the
following priority:

A. Fire Hydrants

Fire hydrants on public streets serving commercial/industrial areas, high density
residential units and school facilities shall be plowed or shoveled out so as to be
readily accessible for use.

B. Intersections

If in the discretion of staff, snow piles at busy intersections are of such height as to
create unsafe conditions, the piles will be pushed back at those intersections on the
following streets:

1) County Road 5



2) Main Street
3) County Road 23

IV. EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE
At the discretion of the City Administrator, the Public Services Department can hire either
additional equipment or drivers for assistance with snow removal.

V. ADMINISTRATION
A. Council Review
Staff will review the Snow Removal Policy and Operational Guidelines prior to the

next year’s snow season and make any recommendations for amendments to the
City Council.

V1. REPEAL
This resolution repeals all previous snow plow policies.

This Resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 6™ day of October 2020.

Mayor Jeff Johnson
Attest:

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



L.7.

A Community For Generations.

Isanti

Request for City Council Action

To: Mayor Johnson and Members City Council

From: Sheila Sellman, Community Development Director

Date: October 6, 2020

Subject: RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XXX AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF

REPAYMENT AGREEMENT ON LOT 6, BLOCK 3, VILLAGES ON THE RUM
ADDITION WITH JROBINSON CONSTRUCTION, INC

Background:

On December 19, 2017 the City Council amended and extended a SAC and WAC deferral program
through Resolution 2017-304 to continue to spur development activity and in 2018, the City Council
extended the program to December 31, 2019 by Resolution 2018-268. J Robinson Construction, Inc.
has requested that the City execute a Repayment Agreement for 1004 Pleasant View Court described
as Lot 6, Block 3, Village on the Rum Addition, for the construction of a single-family home. The

business is in ‘good standing” upon review of the MN Secretary of State Office as of September 29,
2020.

The form of the Repayment Agreement is consistent with the form approved by the City Council on
December 19, 2017. The Repayment Agreement will be dated as of the date that the Building Permit
is paid for by the Developer.

Request
Staff is requesting that the City Council adopt the attached Resolution.

Attachments:
¢ Resolution 2020-XXX
e Repayment Agreements



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF REPAYMENT AGREEMENT ON LOT 6,
BLOCK 3, VILLAGES ON THE RUM ADDITION WITH J ROBINSON
CONSTRUCTION, INC

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti adopted a SAC and WAC Deferral program on December
19, 2017 which is documented by Resolution 2017-304 and extended the program to December
31, 2019 by Resolution 2018-268; and,

WHEREAS, A boiler plate Repayment Agreement was drafted by the City Attorney and
the City Council directed Staff to utilize this agreement for parties interested in SAC and WAC
Deferral for commercial or residential development; and,

WHEREAS, J Robinson Construction, Inc (the “Developer”) has asked the City of Isanti
to enter into a Repayment Agreement for the properties legally described as: Lot 6, Block 3,
Villages on the Rum Addition (the “Property”) and has agreed to pay the recording fee
associated with the filing of the Repayment Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the Developer has stated the it will be the owner of the Property at the time
of execution of the Repayment Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the date of the Repayment Agreement will be when the Developer signs
prior to the payment of the building permit; and,

WHEREAS, the Developer is registered, active and is in good standing with the
Minnesota Secretary of State Office as of September 29, 2020.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Isanti, Minnesota authorized the Mayor and City Administrator to execute the Repayment
Agreement attached hereto contingent upon satisfactory proof of ownership witnessed in a
recorded instrument of conveyance to the Developer.

This Resolution hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 6% day of October, 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources / City Clerk



REPAYMENT AGREEMENT; STATUTORY SHORT FORM MORTGAGE; AND
DEED RESTRICTIONS

THIS REPAYMENT AGREEMENT; STATUTORY SHORT FORM MORTGAGE;
AND DEED RESTRICTIONS (“AGREEMENT”), made on or as of the = day of
, 2020, by and between the City of Isanti, Minnesota, a Minnesota municipal
corporation (hereinafter referred to as the "City") having its principal office at 110 First Avenue
N.W. PO Box 428, [santi, Minnesota 55040, and J Robinson Construction, Inc. , a corporation
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (hereinafter referred to as the "Developer"), having its
principal office at 27178 Tamarack St NW, Isanti, MN 55040.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to construct three single family homes (the
“Improvements”) on certain real property (the “Property”) in the City; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the construction of the Improvements there are certain
water and sanitary sewer charges that are payable by the Developer to the City; and

WHEREAS, the Developer has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the City that the
Developer is unable to pay the full amount of the charges now and has asked the City to defer such
charges and make them payable at a future point in time; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Improvements by the Developer
is in the best interests of the City and, therefore, it is willing to defer the charges if doing so will
facilitate the development and viability of the Improvements.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of the
parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as follows:



ARTICLE 1
Definitions

Section 1.1. Definitions. In this Agreement, unless a different meaning clearly appears from
the context:

"Agreement" means this Agreement, as the same may be from time to time modified,
amended, or supplemented.

"City" means the City of Isanti, Minnesota, its successors and assigns.
"County" means Isanti County, Minnesota.

“Deferred Charges” means the utility charges described in Section 3.1 of this Agreement

being deferred by the City and which the Developer is obligated to pay in accordance with this
Agreement.

"Developer” means J Robinson Construction, Inc, a Minnesota Corporation, its successors
and assigns.

"Event of Default" means an action by the Developer listed in Article IV of this Agreement.

“Improvements” means the single-family home to be constructed by the Developer on the
Property.

"Property" means the real property described on the attached Schedule A to this Agreement.

"State" means the State of Minnesota.

ARTICLE I
Representations

Section 2.1. Representations by the City. The City makes the following representations as
the basis for the undertaking on its part herein contained:

(a) The City is a statutory city duly organized and existing under the laws of the State.

Under State law, the City has the power to enter into this Agreement and to perform its obligations
hereunder.

Section 2.2. Representations by the Developer. The Developer represents that:

(a) The Developer is a corporation duly organized and authorized to transact business in
the State, is not in violation of any provisions of its Bylaws or the laws of the State, has power to
enter into this Agreement and has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement by proper action of its Board of Directors.



ARTICLE II1
Deferred Charges, Payment and Security

Section 3.1. Deferred Charges. The Developer owes to the City the sum of $ 6,071.00 in
deferred utility charges (“Deferred Charges”). The Deferred Charges consist of $ 2,692.00 in
Water Availability Charges and § 3,379.00 in Sewer Availability Charges. The City has agreed to
defer the payment of the Deferred Charges as described in this Agreement.

Section 3.2. Payment of the Deferred Charges. The Developer covenants and agrees that
it will pay the Deferred Charges to the City on the earliest to occur of the following:

(a) on the date that is one hundred and twenty (120) days after the date of this
Agreement;

(b) on the date that the Developer sells or transfers the Property or Improvements, or
any portion thereof;, or

(©) on the date that the City issues a certificate of occupancy for the Improvements.

Interest shall accrue on the Deferred Charges at the rate of zero percent (0%) from the date hereof
and continuing until the Deferred Charges and all accrued interest have been paid in full.

Section 3.3. Payment of Costs.

(a) The Developer shall pay all costs for title work and recording of this Agreement.

(b) The Developer shall pay all costs incurred by the City in connection with the
preparation and implementation of this Agreement and related documents, including, without
limitation, fees of attorneys related the preparation of this Agreement and related documents, if
the Developer fails to complete construction of the Improvements within one hundred and twenty
(120) days after the date of this Agreement.

Section3.4  Security. As security for Developer’s obligation of repayment of the
Deferred Charges and Costs identified in Sections 3.1 and 3.3, Developer hereby grants and the
City shall and hereby does have, a lien on the Property in the full amount necessary to satisfy any
repayment obligation of the fees and charges identified in Sections 3.1 and 3.3 under this
Agreement and the cost including reasonable attorney’s fees, of collecting the same.

Section 3.5  Notice. At least 10 days before the date of any sale, cash out refinance,
transfer or other conveyance of the Property or, in the event of a sale by contract for deed,
Developer or their heirs, executors or representatives, shall give the City notice thereof.

Section3.6  Mortgage. To secure any such repayment of the Deferred Charges under
Section 3.1 and 3.3 as may become due under the provisions of this Article, the Developer hereby



grants to the City a Statutory Short Form Mortgage pursuant to the provisions of Minnesota
Statutes Section 507.15 (2016) as follows:

UNIFORM SHORT FORM MORTGAGE

This statutory mortgage, made this  day of , 2020 between the City of Isanti, a
Minnesota Municipal having its principal office at 110 First Avenue N.W. PO Box 428, Isanti,
Minnesota 55040 (the “Mortgagor™), and J Robinson Construction, Inc., a corporation under the
laws of the State of Minnesota having its principal office at 27178 Tamarack St NW, Isanti, MN
55040 (the “Mortgagee™),

Witnesseth, that to secure the payment of the Deferred Charges by the Mortgagee to the Mortgagor
of $6,071.00 as described in Article 3 of this Agreement (the “Indebtedness™) the Mortgagor,
hereby mortgages to the mortgagee and grants a security interest in the real property located at
1004 Pleasant View Court, in the City of Isanti, Isanti County, Minnesota, as legally described and
set forth in “Schedule A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (“Property”), subject only to any
liens or encumbrances of record thereon as of the date hereof.

And Mortgagor agrees and covenants with the Mortgagee the following statutory covenants;

1. To warrant the title to the Property, subject only to prior encumbrances of record as of
the date hereof.

2. To pay the indebtedness as herein provided.

To pay all taxes.

4. To keep the buildings located on the Property insured against fire, windstorm and

extended coverage for their full insurable value for the protection of the Mortgagee.

That the Property shall be kept in repair and no waste shall be committed.

6. That the whole of the principal sum shall become due after default, in the payment of
any installment of principal or interest, or of any tax, or in the performance of any other
covenant, at the option of the Mortgagee.

(98]

wn

If default be made in any payment or covenant herein, the mortgagee shall have the statutory power
of sale, and on foreclosure may retain statutory costs and attorney's fees.

Section 3.7. In the event Mortgagor or their heirs, executors or representatives shall fail or
refuse to make a required repayment of the Indebtedness within the limited period set forth herein,
the Mortgagee may, with or without notice to Mortgagor foreclose said lien in the same manner as
provided pursuant an action for the foreclosure of mortgage upon said Property, as by statute
provided, or may at its option proceed with foreclosure by advertisement pursuant to the statutory
power of sale which the Mortgagor grants to the Mortgagee provided under this Mortgage, in
accordance with applicable law. In the event of default by Mortgagor on any of Mortgagor’s
obligations under the terms of this Mortgage, Mortgagee shall also have the right to pursue any
remedy available to it at law or in equity.



ARTICLE 1V
Events of Default

Section 4.1. Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "Events of Default" under
this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean, whenever it is used in this Agreement
(unless the context otherwise provides), any one or more of the following events:

(a) Failure by the Developer to pay when due any payments required to be paid under
this Agreement.

(b) The Developer of the following: (i) file any petition in bankruptcy or for any
reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief
under United States Bankruptcy Laws or any similar Federal or State Laws; or (ii) make an
assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or (iii) admits, in writing, its inability to pay its debts
generally as they become due; or (iv) be adjudicated, bankrupt or insolvent.

Section 4.2. City's Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default by Developer
referred to in Section 4.1 of this Agreement occurs, the City may take any one or more of the
following actions after providing ten (10) days written notice to the Developer of the Event of
Default, but only if the Event of Default has not been cured within said ten (10) days:

(a) Declare the entire outstanding balance of the Deferred Charges immediately due and
payable;

(b) Terminate this Agreement;
() Deny issuance of certificates of occupancy or temporary certificates of occupancy;

(©) Take whatever action, including legal, equitable or administrative action, which may
appear necessary or desirable to the City to collect any payments due under this Agreement, or to
enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant of the Developer
under this Agreement, including the remedies provided under Article 3.

Section 4.3. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the
City or Developer is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each
and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given
under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or
omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or
power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised
from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the City or the
Developer to exercise any remedy reserved to it, it shall not be necessary to give notice, other than
such notice as may be required in this Article IV.

Section 4.4. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any agreement
contained in this Agreement should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other




party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to
waive any other concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder.

Section 4.5. Costs of Enforcement. Whenever any Event of Default occurs and the City
shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of payments due or to become
due or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the
part of the Developer under this Agreement, the Developer agrees that it shall, within ten (10) days

of written demand by the City, pay to the City the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other
expenses so incurred by the City.

Section 4.6. Certificate of Occupancy. The City may deny a certificate of occupancy or

temporary certificate of occupancy for the Property until all amounts owed to the City under the
terms of this Agreement have been paid by Developer.

ARTICLE V
Additional Provisions

Section 5.1. Representatives Not Individually Liable. No member, official, or employee of
the City shall be personally liable to the Developer, or any successor in interest, in the event of
any default or breach or for any amount which may become due to Developer or successor in
interest or on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement.

Section 5.2. Titles of Articles and Sections. Any titles of the several parts, Articles, and
Sections of the Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded
In construing or interpreting any of its provisions.

Section 5.3. Notices and Demands. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement, a notice, demand, or other communication under the Agreement by either party to the
other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail,
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally; and

(a) in the case of the Developer, is addressed to or delivered personally to J Robinson
Construction, Inc. 27178 Tamarack St NW, Isanti, MN 55040; and

(b) in the case of the City, is addressed to or delivered personally to the City at 110 First
Avenue N.W., P.O. Box 428, Isanti, Minnesota 55040,

or at such other address with respect to either such party as that party may, from time to time,
designate in writing and forward to the other as provided in this Section.

Section 5.4. Disclaimer of Relationships. The Developer acknowledges that nothing
contained in this Agreement nor any act by the City or the Developer shall be deemed or construed
by the Developer or by any third person to create any relationship of third-party beneficiary,

principal and agent, limited or general partner, or joint venture between the City and the Developer
or any third party.



Section 5.5. Release. Upon payment of all fees and charges under Article III in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement, the City will furnish Developer with a Release of Mortgage for the
Property within a reasonable period of time following the request. Developer shall be responsible for
recording the Release of Mortgage.

Section 5.6. Modifications. This Agreement may be modified solely through written
amendments hereto executed by the Developer and the City.

Section 5.7. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 5.8. Judicial Interpretation. Should any provision of this Agreement require judicial
interpretation, the court interpreting or construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the
terms hereof shall be more strictly construed against one party by reason of the rule of construction
that a document is to be construed more strictly against the party who itself or through its agent or
attorney prepared the same, it being agreed that the agents and attorneys of both parties have
participated in the preparation hereof.

Section 5.9.  Run with the Land. This Agreement may be recorded against the Property
and shall run with the aforesaid Property and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the
parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, representatives, successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its
name and behalf and the Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its name and
behalf on or as of the date first above written.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
[signature pages to follow]



CITY/MORTGAGEE:
CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA

By
Its Mayor
By
Its City Administrator
STATE OF MINNESOTA )
)ss.
COUNTY OF ISANTI )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of , 2020,

by Jeff Johnson and Josi Wood, the Mayor and City Administrator of the City of Isanti, Minnesota,
a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the City.

Notary Public



DEVELOPER/MORTGAGOR:
J Robinson Construction, Inc.

By
Its President
STATE OF MINNESOTA )
)ss.
COUNTY OF ISANTI )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 2020,

by Joshua W. Robinson, the President of J Robinson Construction, Inc, a corporation under the
laws of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of the corporation.

Notary Public

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY:

City of Isanti

110 1% Avenue NW

PO Box 428

[santi, MN 55040
Telephone: (763) 444-5512



SCHEDULE A
Description of Property

Lots 6, Block 3, Villages on the Rum Addition, Isanti County, Minnesota

190349v4



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX L ° 8 °

RECOGNIZING NATIONAL PREGNANCY AND INFANT LOSS REMEMBRANCE DAY

WHEREAS, Infants Remembered In Silence, Inc. (IRIS) and many other nonprofit
organizations work with thousands of parents all over Minnesota and across the United States
who have experienced the death of a child during pregnancy through early childhood; and,

WHEREAS, many of these parents live in, deliver in, have a child die in, or bury a child in
our community; and,

WHEREAS, Infants Remembered In Silence (IRIS) a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization was
founded in 1987, 33 years ago, to offer support for parents whose child/children died from
miscarriage, ectopic pregnancy, molar pregnancy, stillbirth, neo-natal death, birth defects, sudden
unexplained death of a child (SUDC), sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS), illness, accidents and
all other types of infants and early childhood death; and,

WHEREAS, Bereaved parents around the world remember their children annually on
October 15 with a candle lighting at 7 p.m. Some will remember their child/children in their homes
while others will remember them in small gatherings around the state, across the nation and around
the world; and this would unify these parents in tribute to their children; and,

WHEREAS, In 1988 President Ronald Reagan proclaimed October as National Pregnancy
and Infant Loss Awareness month;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Isanti, Minnesota, In honor of the thousands of children that die each year in Minnesota, Infants
Remembered In Silence, Inc. (IRIS) respectfully requests that October 15%, 2020 be recognized as
Pregnancy and Infant L.oss Remembrance Day.

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 6% day of October 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



L.9.

A Community For Generations.

Request for City Council Action- MEMO

To. Mayor Johnson and Members of City Council

From: Matt Sylvester, Public Services Director

Date: October 6, 2020

Subject: Consider Resolution to Declare Metal as Scrap and Authorize Its’ Disposal

Public Works has accumulated miscellaneous items that need to be disposed of. These items are as
follows:

Scrap
Iron and Steel leftover from repairs
Old Signs
Old Sign Posts
Old Meter Bodies

Per policy, Resolution 2009-078, based on current pricing, Public Services Director obtained quotes
and recommends taking the scrap metal to Midway Iron and Metal in St. Cloud for the best prices
on scrap metals. Any items that cannot be taken as scrap will be disposed of.

Request:
It is requested that City Council review and take action on this item.

Attachment:
e Resolution 2020-XXX — Resolution to Declare Metal as Scrap and Authorize Its’ Disposal



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

DECLARING METAL AS SCRAP AND AUTHORIZING ITS DISPOSAL

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Public Works Department has scrap metal that is
of no use to the City; and,

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2009-078 provides guidelines for the disposal of scrap metal;
and,

WHEREAS, among solicited quotations, current pricing yields highest with Midway Iron and
Metal in St. Cloud;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City of Isanti, Minnesota, to
hereby authorize the following:

1. To declare scrap metal which includes but not limited to: old iron from repairs, aluminum

signs, steel signs and old meter parts, located at the Public Works Facility as surplus
property and authorize for its disposal.

2. The Public Services Director shall have the authority to sign all necessary paperwork to
allow for the process for the disposal of scrap metal identified per this Resolution.

This Resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council the 6" day of October, 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



L.10.

A Community For Generations.

Isanti

MEMO for City Council
To: Mayor Johnson and Members of the City Council
From: Josi Wood, City Administrator
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Resolution 2020-XXX Entering into an Agreement with Civic Systems, LLC for Caselle

Connect Software Modules

The City currently uses Caselle Clarity management system for our accounting software. Due to
COVID-19, staff has explored options to enhance what we currently use to limit person to person
contact and add efficiency with access online for tasks such as taking payments from customers and
processing building permits and inspections. The best option staff found was to upgrade our current
system to Caselle Connect and add modules to provide the best customer service during this time.

Staff received a proposal from Civic Systems, LLC for a total amount of $20,460.00. The
breakdown costs for each module will be funded through the following:
e Coronavirus Relief Funds - $15,780.00 - Accounts Payable, Building Permits, Citizen
Portal, Mobile App, Cash Receipting, General Ledger, and Payroll
Fund 614 Technology - $1,760.00 - Accounts Receivable and Asset Management
e Water 601 and Sewer 602 - $2,920.00 - Utility Billing

Recommendation:

Staff is recommending to enter into an agreement with Civic Systems, LLC for Caselle Connect and
modules defined within the proposal.

Attachments:

¢ Resolution 2020-XXX Entering into an Agreement with Civic Systems, LLC
e Civic Systems, LLC Proposal (Exhibit A)



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

AUTHORIZING TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC
FOR CASELLE CONNECT SOFTWARE MODULES

WHEREAS, the current accounting software system used for Utility Billing, AP, AR,

Payroll, Cash Receipting and other operating functions is Caselle Clarity through Civic Systems,
LLC; and,

WHEREAS, due to COVID-19, it is in the best interest of the City to add additional
modules to allow for Building Permitting/ Inspection processing online with access to a customer

portal, and upgrades to Payroll, AP, Cash Receipting, and the General Ledger to minimize person to
person contact; and,

WHEREAS, an upgrade to our AR, Asset Management and Utility Billing modules to

Caselle Connect is beneficial for enhanced functions which will be funded through Technology,
Water and Sewer; and,

WHEREAS, the proposal received by Civic Systems, LLC for such modules was
$20,460.00; and,

WHEREAS, funding for modules are identified as follows:
e Coronavirus Relief Funds — Accounts Payable, Building Permits, Citizen Portal,
Mobile App, Cash Receipting, General Ledger, and Payroll
* Fund 614 Technology - Accounts Receivable and Asset Management
e Water 601 and Sewer 602 — Utility Billing;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Isanti, Minnesota, approve the following:

1. Use of Coronavirus Relief Funds for modules defined per this Resolution in the
amount of $15,780.00.

2. Use of Funds from 614 Technology for modules defined per this Resolution in the
amount of $1,760.00.

3. Use of Funds split from Water and Sewer for modules defined per this Resolution in
the amount of $2,920.00
4. The City Administrator or designee is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement

and sign corresponding documents with Civic Systems for Caselle Connect with

modules for a total amount of $20,460.00 plus annual support fees; referenced as
Exhibit A.

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 6® day of October, 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk







































L.11.

A Community For Generations.,
lmnti
Request for City Council Action - MEMO
To: Mayor Johnson and City Council Members
From: John Jacobi, Liquor Store Manager

Date: September 28th, 2020

Subject: Donation Request for 13" Annual MMBA “Food Drive” promotion in-store

Background:

Each year the MMBA supports a Food Drive for the sole purpose of raising funds as well as
supplying donations to help support local food shelves in our area. [ am requesting that we promote
this program in-store and customers can donate nonperishable food items or make a cash donation

in any amount that they wish to help support this program. The dates of the Food Drive are October
6" through October 31%, 2020.

Action
Staff is requesting City Council action on this item.

Attachment:
¢ Resolution 2020-xxx Approving Donation Box at Liquor Store



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

APPROVING DONATION BOX AT LIQUOR STORE
WHEREAS, on June 2", 2009 City Council approved a donation box policy; and,

WHEREAS, Isanti Liquor is requesting use of a donation box at the liquor store in
support of the “MMBA Food Drive”; and,

WHEREAS, the Donation Policy has been reviewed the request and recommended its
approval;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of

Isanti, Minnesota hereby approves placement of a donation box for the “MMBA Food Drive” at
the Isanti Liquor Store from October 6™, 2020 through October 31 ,2020.

Adopted by the Isanti City Council this 6™ day of October 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk



LIFTUP OUR
COMMUNITY

MINNESOTA MUNICIp

o L
BEVERAGE 48S0C1aTi0y
o

VB SO0 BEEN BSTORMERY
P B AR SRR

13th Annual MMBA Food Drive Promotes Community Value

In an effort to help members Promote the Community Value of their Municipal Liquor Operation,
MMBA, in a new partnership with Miller Lite is coordinating the Thirteenth Annual Municipal
Liguor Food Drive benefiting your local food shelf.

As in previous vears, there will be two competition brackets, based on 2018 annual sales:

$1,000,000 and Above & Below $1,000,000

The individual facility (not city) in each category with the highest weight donated will earn a
$1,000 donation to their local food shelf from Miller Lite and MMBA.

In addition:

Through a random drawing, ten $100 donations will be made to food shelves of participating
facilities, other than the category winners. So, everyone has a chance to win!

Here are additional details:

e The food drive will run from October 1 — October 31, 2020.

¢ Each participating MMBA member will collect dry food, can goods & cash for donation to
your local food shelf of choice. Anything your food shelf will accept is eligible to be
counted, including, but not limited to, field produce and canned / bottled water.

NOTE:

Each $1 in cash donations will be counted
as 3 pounds of food.



¢ At the end of the event (November 1), please take the collected food and cash to the food
shelf to be weighed. (Contact the MMBA office if you need assistance locating your local
food shelf.)

A week or so after the conclusion of the event, send the MMBA office the information at:
kaspszak@outlook.com.

e Coordinate signs with your Miller Lite Distributor.

o Here are some successful ideas to promote the event:

Facility product discount for those donating food

Stapling a flyer to carry-out bags

Displaying the food in the front of the store to catch customer eyes

Reference or total focus in advertising mediums

Miller wholesaler could build a platform of Miller Lite cases for the food to display
on, or a wall of cases around an area where donations will be

placed.

Local newspaper story

Collect contributions by participating in other community events

A NANEL NI NN

AN

Questions:

MMBA: kaspszak@outlook.com
Jon Chance: jonathan.chance@molsoncoors.com




L.12.

A Community For Generations.

Isanti

Request for City Council Action

To: Mayor Johnson and Members of City Council

From: Jaden Moore, Deputy City Clerk/ Human Resources

Date: October 6, 2020

Subject: Resolution 2020-XXX Awarding Quote and Authorizing to Enter into a Contract for

Codification Services

Background:

Council authorized staff on July 7%, 2020 to advertise an RFP (Request for proposal) for
codification services. Staff received two proposals; General Code and American Legal Publishing
for such services. The City currently uses General Code for codification services.

Request:

Staff is recommending to enter into a contract to continue receiving services from General Code for
codification services as they are lower overall for services per the specifications outlined in the
request for proposal. The contract would begin October 7™, 2020 and can end at any time.

Attachments:

e Resolution 2020-XXX Awarding Quote and Authorizing to Enter into a Contract for
Codification Services

e Proposals received



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX
AWARDING QUOTE AND AUTHORIZING TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
FOR CODIFICATON SERVICES

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti has determined it is in the City’s best interest to
receive proposals for codification services; and,

WHEREAS, the Council authorized staff to request proposals for codification
services on July 7™, 2020; and,

WHEREAS, the request for proposals for codification was published in the City’s
official newspaper; and,

WHEREAS, two proposals were received and are attached; and,

Consultant Base Quotation not including optional/
additional expenses
General Code $5,220
American Publishing $8.,800

WHEREAS, General Code was found to best fit the needs of the City given all
rates and services considered;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Isanti, Minnesota the following:

1. Hereby award the contract for codification services to General Code.
2. Hereby authorize staff to enter into and sign a contract with General Code
starting October 7™, 2020 and can end at any time.

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 6% day of October 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources/City Clerk




Cienera( Code

V. Pricing Quotation Sheet
. Base Cost City Code (493 pages) Includes $5,220
(A) Number of Copies (5 requested)

(B) General Code recommends that the Clty reuse their existing Binders for each Cods,
three ring or post (5 requested)

(C) Legal Analysis, as describad in Duties of Publisher
(D) Special Features; List Balow
(E) Estimated Number of Pages {number of pages included in base rate) 84" x 11

Format
1) 340 Single column pages plus an additional 20 pages added to the Code for
supplementation
Il.  Base Cost Zoning Code Includes (Optional) $4,550

(A) Number of Copies (5 requested)

(B) General Code recommends that the City reuse their existing Binders for each Code,
three ring or post (5 requested)

(C) Legal Analysis, as described in Duties of Publisher
(D) Special Featurss; List Below

(E) Estimated Number of Pages (number of pages included in base rate) 84" x 11"
Format

1) 253 Single column pages
Il.  Variable Cost

(A) Per Page (Above/Below) 340-page estimate 8%" x 11" Format
1) Single Column $14.00

(B) Freight/Shipping 20.00
IV.  Time to Completion

Number of Months Until Manuscript and Editorial and Legal Analysis 3 months
Number of Months Until Completed Code (after retumn of manuscript) 7 months
Number of Days for Updated Supplements 20-30 days

21



Co 4 r".,,_
..?»‘I'.'M‘:,:fj \ 355 B T
) \‘75.,\,_ ;



V. Optional Services

(A) Reorder Extra Copies of Extra Code Minimum Number of Copies

1) Cost per Extra Code with Binder $350
2) Cost per Extra Code without Binder $28
3) Cost per Extra Chapter, separately bound $0.15 per page

Includes trimming, drifling and binding

(B) Updating ordinances in conflict with state and federal statutes
Describe: As part of ongoing supplementation, adopted ordinances will be
incorporated into the Code, as applicable. As part of the editorial wark on the
supplement, conflicts with state or federal statutes may be identified and brought
to the attention of the City to address and potentially adopt new legislation.
Subsequent amendments shall be included as supplementation to the Code, at
the per-page rate noted below.

{C) Providing model ordinances when requested Included
Describe: Sample legisiation is available to the City 24/7/385 using our Multicode
Search functionality on eCode360. General Code Is also happy to provide
sample lagisiation upon request.

(D) Cost for information retrieval software for the Code (eCode360)  $0
eCode360 Annual Maintenance Fee is $995 for our Premium package at your next
anniversary date.

(E) Supplement Service (8 1% 11" format)
1)" Single-column $17.50 Per Page

an



I) Base Cost City Code (Includes)

1)

(A)
(B)
©
(D)
(E)

(A)
(B)
©
(D)
(E)

1)

v

V)

(A)

®)
)

American Legal publishing

QUOTATION SHEET
CITY OF ISANTI, MN RECODIFICATION
OF MUNICIPAL CODE

Five Copies of Code

Five Binders - one for each Code

Legal Analysis, as described in Agreement

Special Features: No additional charge for tables/graphics
Estimated Number of Pages (included in Base Cost)

82" x 11" Format

Zoning by reference:
1) Single column

2) Dual column

Base Cost Zoning Code (Includes)

Zoning by reference: $_8.800

(City Code with Zoning Code included in full: $8,800 + $4,700 = $13,500)

Five Copies of Code

Five Binders - one for each Code

Legal Analysis, as described in Agreement

Special Features: No additional charge for tables/ graphics
Estimated Number of Pages (included in Base Cost)

82" x 11" Format

Zoning in full:

1)  Single column (pages in addition to City Code)
2) Dual column

442 _ pages
375 pages
$.4.700
250 _ pages
210  pages

(City Code with Zoning Code included in full: 442 pages + 250 pages = 692 Total Pages)

Variable Cost

Per Page Increase Rate above 442 pages in base cost (or 692 if zoning included);

82" x 11" Format
1) Single Column
2) Dual Column
Freight/Shipping

Time to Completion

Number of Months Until Manuscript finished
Number of Months Until Completed Code (after return of manuscript)
Number of Days for Updated Supplement

(A)

Optional Services

Reorder Extra Copies of Complete Code.
1) Minimum Number of Copies

2) Cost per Extra Code with Binder

3) Cost per Extra Code without Binder

$18

$21
4-6  months
3 months

45 days for annual
updates (quicker for more
frequent updates)



(B)

©

D)

(E)

Updating ordinances in conflict with state and federal statutes:
This is offered as part of legal review included with the recodification

Providing model ordinances when requested:
Publisher can provide model ordinances at no cost; city can also view and search all codes
posted on Publisher’s website at no cost.

Search and Retrieval Software (Online Code)

1) Conversion of Code (one-time setup fee) $.585 ($725 if zoning included)
2) Future Online update fee ' $.1.75/page
3) Online annual hosting fee $.450
Supplement Service; 8'4” x 11” Format

1) Single-column $18 Per Page
2) Dual-column $21 Per Page

No additional charge for pages with tables or graphics



RESOLUTION 2020-XXX L 1 1 3 ®

APPROVING APPLICATION FOR AN EXEMPT GAMBLING PERMIT FOR RUM
RIVER BMX 50/50 RAFFLE

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for exempt gambling permit from Rum
River BMX to hold an event on October 25™, 2020 at Rum River BMX, Isanti, MN; and,

WHEREAS, the applicant estimates the value of prizes to be awarded is $1,800 for the
event and will require state approval; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti has no objection to the conduct of lawful gambling by the
applicant, in accordance with law, at the designated location; and,

WHEREAS, the applicant, Sean Wilson, has successfully passed a background check by
the Isanti Police Department;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of

Isanti, Minnesota that the applications for an exempt gambling permits is approved for the
following date: October 25™, 2020 at Rum River BMX;

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 6 day of October 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
Human Resources / City Clerk



A Gommunity For Generations.

Isanti

City of Isanti
110-1* Avenne NW
PO Box 428
Isanti, MN 55040
Phone: 763.444.5512
Fax: 763.444.5560

Applicant Instructions:
1. Fee upon application is $50.00 and must be made payable to City of Isanti.

Name of Organization: Rum River Bmx Association

APPLICATION FOR AN EXEMPT GAMBLING PERMIT

Address of Organization: 101 Isanti Pkwy NW. Isanti MN. 55040

Name and address of the officers and person accounting for receipts, expenses, and profits for the event:

Sean Wiison

Name _ Address Phone No.
Cherie Sullivan 1018 Bellaire Blvd NW. Isanti MN. 55040

Name Address Phone No.
Name . : Address Phone No.
Type of Event: Raffle (50/50) Date of event: Oct 25th 2020

Use of Proceeds: Proceeds shall be use to offset cost of awards and event

Location and address of event:

Isanti Indoor Arena 101 Isanti Pkwy NW Isanti

Estimated value of prizes to be awarded: _$1,800.00

Name of applicant: Sean Wilson Applicant’s phone number:

Signature of applicant:

Date:

Approved by City Council Resolution #
POS =3/311

Ci\Users\admindataclerk\AppData\L ocal\Microsoft\Windows\ Temporary Internet Files\Content. Outlook\LCCS2MSN\Exempt Gambling A

Application.docx




L.14.

AUTHORIZING A REDUCTION IN THE LETTER OF CREDIT FOR HERITAGE
ESTATES

RESOLUTION 2020-XXX

WHEREAS, Level Contracting LLC, (developer) has submitted a written request for a
reduction in the letter of credit as described in the development agreement between the developer
and the City of Isanti; and,

WHEREAS, the developer has requested a reduction of the remaining balance less the
10% required for the warranty period, leaving a balance of $41,500; and,

WHEREAS, the developer has successfully completed improvements for this
development; and,

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director and City Engineer have reviewed the
request and recommended approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, that
the requested reduction in the letter of credit be hereby APPROVED as requested, BE IT
FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Isanti authorizes City Staff to
execute said reduction.

This Resolution was duly adopted by Isanti City Council this 6™ day of October, 2020.

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson

Katie Brooks
City Clerk/Human Resources



